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2.	 LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS / ACRONYMS

AFS ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AGSA AUDITOR-GENERAL OF SOUTH AFRICA

AIDS ACQUIRED IMMUNO-DEFICIENCY SYNDROME

APP ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN

ARC AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

B-BBEE BROAD-BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT

CFO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
CJS CRIMINAL JUSTICE SYSTEM

CoE COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

COGTA COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS 
COM&E CIVILIAN OVERSIGHT MONITORING AND EVALUATION

COVID-19 CORONAVIRUS DISEASE 2019

CPF COMMUNITY POLICING FORUM

CSF COMMUNITY SAFETY FORUM

CSPS CIVILIAN SECRETARIAT FOR POLICE SERVICE 

DCoG DEPARTMENT OF COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE

DDM DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT MODEL 

DNA DEOXYRIBONUCLEIC ACID

DPCI DIRECTORATE FOR PRIORITY CRIME INVESTIGATIONS

DPME DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING, MONITORING AND EVALUATION

DPSA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION

EHW EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS 

ERMEC EXECUTIVE RISK MANAGEMENT AND ETHICS COMMITTEE

GBV GENDER-BASED VIOLENCE 

GCIS GOVERNMENT COMMUNICATION AND INFORMATION SYSTEM

GIZ GERMAN DEVELOPMENT COOPERATION

HIV HUMAN IMMUNODEFICIENCY VIRUS

HRD HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

HRM HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

ICT INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGY

ICVPS INTEGRATED CRIME AND VIOLENCE PREVENTION STRATEGY

IDPs INTEGRATED DEVELOPMENT PLANS

IFS INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IoD INJURY ON DUTY 

IPID INDEPENDENT POLICE INVESTIGATIVE DIRECTORATE

ISA INTERNATIONAL STANDARDS ON AUDITING

ISCSP INTER-SECTORAL COORDINATION AND STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

JCPS JUSTICE, CRIME PREVENTION AND SECURITY CLUSTER 

MCS MODIFIED CASH STANDARD 

MECs MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

MMS MIDDLE MANAGEMENT SERVICES



MoU MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

MTSF MEDIUM-TERM STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK

NCOP NATIONAL COUNCIL OF PROVINCES 

NCPS NATIONAL CRIME PREVENTION STRATEGY

NDP NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

NFDD NATIONAL FORENSIC DNA DATABASE

NPP NATIONAL POLICING POLICY

NRF NATIONAL REVENUE FUND 

OHS OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

OMF OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

PAA PUBLIC AUDIT ACT

PFMA PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT

PMDS PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT SYSTEM

POCDATARA PROTECTION OF CONSTITUTIONAL DEMOCRACY AGAINST TERRORIST AND RELATED 
ACTIVITIES AMENDMENT (ACT)

PPE PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT 

PSCBC PUBLIC SERVICE COORDINATING BARGAINING COUNCIL 

PwDs PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

RFSAPP REVISED FRAMEWORK ON STRATEGIC AND ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLANS

SALGA SOUTH AFRICAN LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION

SAPS SOUTH AFRICAN POLICE SERVICE 

SASSETA SAFETY AND SECURITY SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY 
SCM SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

SCOPA STANDING COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 

SDIP SERVICE DELIVERY IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

SHERQ SAFETY, HEALTH, ENVIRONMENT, RISK AND QUALITY

SMS SENIOR MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

SOPs STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES 

WIL WORK INTEGRATED LEARNERS



3.	 FOREWORD BY THE MINISTER

Although 2022/23 came with the relief of officially finding ourselves on the other side of a gruelling pandemic, we have 
also come to acknowledge the reality that the era of poly-crises, both in the country and in the world, is what will 
now define our existence for generations to come. It is this reality that underpinned the sentiments expressed by the 

President in the 2022 State of the Nation Address, when he asserted that “there are moments in the life of a nation when old 
certainties are unsettled and new possibilities emerge. In these moments, there is both the prospect of great progress and the 
risk of reversal”. He rightly emphasised the need for a new consensus that would be borne out of a common understanding 
of our current challenges and the recognition of the urgency required to address these challenges. The underlying paradox, 
irrespective of the nature of any crisis, is that the inability to adequately contain its impact from a socio-economic perspective 
by other stakeholders inevitably translates into a safety and security problem in one way or another. As we ponder upon the 
implications of it all, as a State and as a sector, we remain sober to the immutable fact that safety and security is and will 
continue to be an apex priority in this regard. 

The above notwithstanding; the Civilian Secretariat for Police Service (CSPS) has, in the past year, made some notable 
strides in actualising my directive to ensure tangible change in as far as building safer communities is concerned. The 
2022/23 financial year marked the first year of implementing the CSPS’ emergent theory of change, which seeks to facilitate 
greater alignment of the departmental strategic orientation to the objectives of the National Development Plan (NDP), the 
revised 2019-2024 Medium-Term Strategic Framework (MTSF), and other priorities of government. The focus was also on 
the institutionalisation of and advocacy towards the implementation of the Cabinet-approved Integrated Crime and Violence 
Strategy (ICVPS) by all spheres of government. 

During the period under review, the Department conducted a joint research project with Provincial Secretariats in order 
to determine the extent to which provincial safety strategies are aligned to the key provisions of the ICVPS. The analysis 
was undertaken with the intention of ensuring that all provinces are equipped with the relevant policy instruments that will 
enable full implementation of the integrated approach to safety, crime and violence prevention towards a safer South Africa. 
The CSPS also continued to engage and collaborate with civil society organisations for this purpose. The impact of these 
processes is evident, as we have begun to see several provinces enhancing their efforts in terms of allocating more resources 
towards community safety than had previously been the case. 

In addition, the National Policing Policy (NPP) developed by the CSPS also aims to supplement interventions that seek to 
respond to the current policing, crime and violence challenges in the country and advance the transformation of the South 
African Police Service (SAPS), towards the realisation of the NDP vision. The reporting period saw the continuation of broad 
consultations with key stakeholders on the NPP; a process which has also prompted SAPS to give thorough consideration 
to the current philosophy and doctrine underpinning its policing approaches with a view to becoming more adept to an ever-
changing democratic policing landscape. 

GENERAL BH CELE, MP
MINISTER OF POLICE
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The theory of change requires that constitutionally compliant legislation be developed to contribute to a transformed and 
accountable police service. An appropriate regulatory environment is a prerequisite in order for the police to execute their 
constitutional mandate, and for effective oversight to be maintained. It is against this backdrop that the CSPS continues 
to work tirelessly to support me – and by extension, the Justice, Crime Prevention and Security (JCPS) cluster - in the 
formulation, analysis and review of relevant enabling legislation. During the reporting period, the Criminal Law (Forensic 
Procedures) Amendment Bill and the Protection of Constitutional Democracy Against Terrorist and Related Activities 
(POCDATARA) Amendment Bill were assented to and signed by the President, both of which contribute significantly to 
the achievement of the priorities of the JCPS cluster. A significant amount of work also went into the Independent Police 
Investigative Directorate (IPID) Amendment Bill; the Second Hand Goods Amendment Bill; and the Critical Infrastructure 
Protection Interim Regulations, amongst others. By the end of the period under review, the IPID Amendment Bill was at an 
advanced stage, and it is envisaged that it will be introduced into Parliament in the new financial year. 

Given that I had directed the CSPS to develop mechanisms of maintaining a clear view of what is happening at police station 
level where active policing and community interface takes place, the 2022/23 financial year saw a significant increase in terms 
of my requirements from a monitoring and evaluation, and public participation perspective. Over and above the regulatory 
assessments and oversight initiatives conducted, the Department provided additional support to my oversight visits and 
community outreach programmes, including the development of a tool to assess station-level accountability, and response 
plans that enabled me to give adequate feedback to communities regarding issues they raised on crime prevention. The 
CSPS also conducted a pilot of the national monitoring and domestic violence assessment tool at 34 police stations, in 
preparation for the 2023/24 Police Station Census Project. I am particularly proud of this initiative, as the outcomes thereof 
will provide crucial information to enable the development of appropriate recommendations and targeted interventions to 
improve policing at station level.

Lastly, I congratulate the CSPS on the attainment of yet another clean audit for the 2022/23 financial year, under the leadership 
of the Acting Secretary for Police Service and the dedication of his team. With the view that we are now working towards the 
final years of delivery of the current administration, I would like to encourage the Department to continue on the trajectory of 
high performance and commitment to facilitating integration, coordination and collaboration in the sector. The focus should 
also remain on advancing transformation and professionalisation of the police to ensure the creation of a functional eco-
system in the pursuit of safer communities.

___________________________________________
GENERAL BH CELE, MP
MINISTER OF POLICE   
Date: 12/09/2023
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4.	 REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

OVERVIEW OF THE OPERATIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT

It gives me great pleasure to present the 2022/23 Annual Report, which reflects on the status of the administration of the 
Civilian Secretariat for Police Service (CSPS), with specific emphasis on its financial management and performance on 
predetermined objectives. The report also provides an account of our enhanced exertions towards maintaining the highest 

standards of governance in the management of public finances and resources. The period under review was relatively stable, 
with no major external interruptions on service delivery performance. As such, we continued to direct our focus firmly on the 
execution of our mandate, including the development of evidence-based policies for effective policing and crime prevention; 
the establishment of strategic partnerships to ensure the involvement of communities and other key role-players in crime 
prevention efforts; the provision of evidence-based research for informed decision-making; and the provision of platforms for 
communication and dialogue on policing and safety.  

Our collective efforts have led us to maintain a clean administration through the achievement of an unqualified audit outcome 
with no findings, which has been the position for the past three financial years. We also managed to deliver on 89% of our 
annual predetermined objectives which - although was 3% less than the previous financial year - did not a have negative 
implication on the audit outcome.   

For the Department to achieve and maintain this level of performance, meticulous attention is required in terms of 
strengthening our organisational environment. A key feature in this regard is the continued implementation of the Integrated 
Human Capital Strategy, which focuses on improving human resource management and development, and ensuring that 
our capacity matches our delivery requirements. With the implementation of the Strategy, the Department achieved its target 
of maintaining a vacancy rate of 7%, having filled 146 of its 157 post establishment by the end of the reporting period. The 
Department also remained compliant with the legislated employment equity targets, having exceeded the 50% target of the 
number of female appointments in the senior management echelon; the 2% target of persons employed with disabilities, and 
at least 30% of the staff complement comprising of youth. 

The process of relocating the Department to our new office accommodation was also finalised during this period, although 
this process initially presented several challenges relating to the accessibility to Information and Communication Technology 
(ICT) systems. In spite of these teething problems, the Department implemented 100% of its planned activities as per the 
approved ICT Strategy, the aim of which was to improve ICT operational efficiencies, in line with the requirements of the new 
office accommodation. 

In terms of our strategic orientation, delivery on our predetermined objectives was primarily guided by both the direction 
provided by the Minister at the beginning of the planning cycle and our emergent theory of change, which enabled us to align 

MR TL RAMARU
ACTING SECRETARY FOR 
POLICE SERVICE
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our performance measures to the outcomes articulated in our revised five-year strategy. Given that our interaction with the 
public was no longer inhibited by strict lockdown restrictions, we continued with engagements for the purpose of entering into 
partnership agreements that would broaden our reach in communities. In the 2022/23 financial year, we also assessed the 
status of implementation of existing agreements in order to determine the impact thereof on the ground. The focus was also 
on the development of response plans to create a feedback loop between the Minister and communities on issues raised 
during the public participation programmes. 

In advancing the aim of strengthening community participation, the Department conducted Izimbizo and anti-crime campaigns 
in almost all provinces, in line with Minister’s public participation programme. During the reporting period, the Department 
conducted 13 capacity-building workshops on crime prevention policies in several provinces, exceeding the planned target of 
9 workshops. The Department also facilitated 13 CSF workshops in municipalities across the country, inclusive of workshops 
with community safety portfolio councillors in Mpumalanga, Western Cape, Northern Cape and Gauteng. The exceeding of 
our planned targets on these key programmes was demonstrative of the progressively high demand for the Department’s 
services by provinces, municipalities and other stakeholders during the course of 2023/24.

The reporting period also saw us pay closer attention to the Minister’s call for the CSPS to utilise evidence-based research 
to benchmark towards improving policing and safety approaches. In addition to the joint research project we conducted with 
Provincial Secretariats to determine the alignment of the provincial safety strategies with the 2016 White Paper on Safety and 
Security (WPSS) and the ICVPS, we also conducted research on the analysis of murder case dockets, towards attaining the 
objectives of the ICVPS. The 2023/24 financial year was also dedicated to the development of a centre of excellence concept 
for the CSPS, in line with our knowledge management strategy and framework.  
 
Developing legislation to support and enhance policing remains at the core of our strategy, and during the financial year, two 
of our priority bills were signed into law by the President and published in the Gazette. Significant advancements were also 
made in terms of the IPID Amendment Bill, Second Hand Goods Amendment (SHGA) Bill, and Stock-Theft Amendment Bill, 
amongst others. 

In terms of oversight monitoring and evaluation, we conducted an evaluation of the implementation of the Second-Hand 
Goods Act of 2009 to assess whether the Act is being implemented as intended. The findings of this evaluation will be utilised 
to further inform the aforementioned amendments in the SHGA Bill. The assessments we conducted on the functioning of the 
National Forensic DNA Database revealed a significant decline in the DNA analysis backlog; increasing the likelihood that 
fewer cases will be withdrawn in court due to the unavailability of DNA results. This will translate into significant gains in terms 
of the priorities of the JCPS cluster.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE DEPARTMENT:

Departmental receipts
 

Departmental Receipts

2022/2023 2021/2022

Estimate
Actual 

Amount 
Collected

(Over) 
/ Under 

Collection
Estimate

Actual 
Amount 

Collected

(Over) 
/ Under 

Collection

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Sale of goods and services other than capital assets 75 75 - 77 76 1

Sales of capital assets - 162 (162) 85 85 -

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities - 1 (1) 73 4 69

Total 75 238 (163) 235 165 70

The CSPS is not a revenue collecting or generating department, as it does not deliver a direct revenue-based service to the 
public. Most of the revenue collected relates to internal processes and services. A total amount of R238 000 in revenue was 
collected in the 2022/23 financial year. This is an increase of R73 000 against the 2021/22 revenue of R165 000. The over-
collection of R163 000 was mainly due to revenue from the sale of capital assets.
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Programme Name

2022/2023 2021/2022

Final 
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over) / Under 
Expenditure 

Final 
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over) / Under 
Expenditure 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration 74 150 73 049 1 101 67 755 62 837 4 918

Inter-Sectoral Coordination and 
Strategic Partnerships 25 470 25 458 12 26 196 25 599 597

Legislation and Policy Development 21 700 20 826 874 23 220 19 641 3 579

Civilian Oversight, Monitoring and 
Evaluation 34 600 33 308 1 292 33 872 30 330 3 542

Total 155 920 152 641 3 279 151 043 138 407 12 636

The Department spent R152,641 million or 97.9% of its final appropriation of R155,920 million in the 2022/23 financial 
year. This is a 6.3% increase against the 91.6% spending in the 2021/22 financial year. The bulk of the underspending on 
all programmes is attributed to vacant posts, and an amount of R2,997 million on Compensation of Employees represents 
91.4% of the total underspending of R3,279 million. The main vacancy which could not be filled during the financial year is 
that of the Secretary for Police Service. The Department also underspent with only R22 000 on goods and services, as well 
as R231 000 spent on payments for capital assets which  - with the R29 000 on transfers and subsidies - represents 8.6% of 
the total budget. 

Virements / Roll Overs

 

PROGRAMME
Approved by the Accounting Officer and / or National Treasury

R’000

Administration 2 810

Inter-Sectoral Coordination and Strategic Partnerships (1 685)

Legislation and Policy Development (1 886)

Civilian Oversight, Monitoring and Evaluation 761

Total -

The Accounting Officer approved virements from Programme 2: Inter-Sectoral Coordination and Strategic Partnerships and 
Programme 3:  Legislation and Policy Development to Programme 4: Civilian Oversight, Monitoring and Evaluations and 
Programme 1: Administration in order to defray excess expenditure during the reporting period. Included in the virement is 
the approval from National Treasury for the reduction of Compensation of Employees with R175 000 to defray overspending 
on Transfers to Households in relation to leave gratuity for retirees and end of service / contract.

Reasons for unauthorised, fruitless and wasteful expenditure and the amounts involved as well as steps taken to 
address and prevent a recurrence:

Not applicable

Public-Private Partnerships

Not applicable

Discontinued Key Activities / Activities to be Discontinued

None
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New or Proposed Key Activities

None

Supply Chain Management

During the period under review, there were no unsolicited bid proposals concluded by the Department, and there were also 
no major challenges experienced in Supply Chain Management (SCM). The Department has SCM processes and systems 
in place to prevent irregular expenditure. In addition, regular training of SCM officials is conducted to maintain the status quo. 

Gifts and Donations received in kind from Non-Related Parties

None

Exemptions and Deviations received from the National Treasury 

Not applicable

Events after the Reporting Date

There were no significant events (adjusting and non-adjusting), favourable and unfavourable that occurred after the reporting 
date and the date of approval of the Annual Financial Statements. 

Other 

There was no other material fact or circumstance which may have an effect on the understanding of the financial state of 
affairs. 

___________________ 
MR TL RAMARU 
ACTING SECRETARY FOR POLICE SERVICE 
Date: 28/08/2023
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5.	 STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF 
ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

•	 All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent. 
•	 The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. 
•	 The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued by National 

Treasury. 
•	 The Annual Financial Statements (Part F) have been prepared in accordance with the modified cash standard and the 

relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury. 
•	 The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the judgements made 

in this information. 
•	 The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control that has been designed 

to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources 
information and the annual financial statements. 

•	 The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements. 

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information 
and the financial affairs of the department for the financial year ended 31 March 2023. 

Yours faithfully 

___________________ 
MR TL RAMARU 
ACTING SECRETARY FOR POLICE SERVICE 
Date: 28/08/2023
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VALUES

Integrity

Fairness

Respect

Accountability

Transparency

Collaboration

• Treating others the 
way you would like 
to be treated

• Being even-handed 
and free from 
injustice

• Treating people 
equally and in a way 
that is right or 
reasonable

• Willingness to take 
responsibility for 
one’s own actions

• Willingness to give 
time and energy 
towards the cause

• Willingness to be 
answerable

• Operating in an open 
manner

• Lack of hidden 
agendas

• Building positive, 
cooperative 
relationships with our 
stakeholders

• Adopting an effective 
and transparent 
approach to sharing 
information

• Attributes such as 
honesty, truthfulness, 
straight forwardness

• Absence of lying, 
cheating, theft

• Holding oneself to 
consistent moral and 
ethical standards

Figure 1: Values that guide the conduct of the Department in carrying out its mission

6.	 STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

6.1	 Vision 

A transformed and accountable Police Service that reflects the democratic values and principles of the Constitution of the 
Republic of South Africa.

6.2	 Mission

To provide efficient and effective civilian oversight over the South African Police Service for safer and more secure communities 
through community participation, legislation and policy development.

6.3	 Values

In carrying out its mission, the CSPS subscribes to the following values:
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7.	 LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

7.1	 Legislative Mandate

The Civilian Secretariat for Police Service derives its mandate from the following legislative frameworks: 

•	 Civilian Secretariat for Police Service Act, 2011
•	 Civilian Secretariat for Police Service Regulations, 2016
•	 South African Police Service Act, 1995 (as amended)
•	 Independent Police Investigative Directorate Act, 2011
•	 Criminal Law (Forensic Procedures) Amendment Act, 2013
•	 Public Service Act, 1994
•	 Public Service Regulations, 2016
•	 The Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (as amended) 
•	 Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act, 2005
•	 Critical Infrastructure Protection Act, 2019

7.2	 Policy Mandate

The Civilian Secretariat for Police Service is further guided by the following policies:

•	 National Development Plan (NDP) Vision 2030
•	 2019 – 2024 Revised Medium-Term Strategic Framework
•	 2016 White Paper on Safety and Security
•	 2016 White Paper on Policing
•	 Policy on Community Safety Forums
•	 Policy Framework on Establishing an Integrated Model of Policing: Single Police Service
•	 Policy on Reducing Barriers to the Reporting on Sexual Offences and Domestic Violence
•	 Community Policing Policy

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service  Annual Report 2022|2023 17



8.	 ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Minister of Police
General BH Cele (MP)

Acting Secretary for Police Service
Mr. TL Ramaru

Deputy Minister of Police
Hon. CC Mathale (MP)
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9.	 ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MINISTER

The table below indicates the entities that report to the Minister of Police:

Name of Entity Legislative Mandate Financial Relationship Nature of Operations

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
Civilian Secretariat for Police 
Service Act 2 of 2011

N/A
Provide an oversight role over the performance 
and conduct of the police

South African Police Service
South African Police Service Act 
68 of 1995

The Department has a normal 
supplier-client financial relation-
ship with SAPS

Creating a safe and secure environment for all 
the people in South Africa

Independent Police Investigative Di-
rectorate

Independent Police Investigative 
Directorate Act 1 of 2011

The Department has a normal 
supplier-client financial relation-
ship with IPID

Investigating complaints of alleged criminality 
and misconduct against members of the SAPS 
and Metropolitan Police Services

Private Security Industry Regulatory 
Authority

Private Security Industry Regu-
lation Act 56 of 2001

N/A
Provide for the regulation of the private security 
industry
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INFORMATION



1.	 AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

For the period under consideration, the Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA) provided reasonable assurance on the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information against the predetermined objectives for Programmes 2, 3 
and 4. The audit outcomes indicate that the AGSA did not identify any material findings for any of the audited Programmes.  

For details regarding the audit outcomes on the performance against the predetermined objectives, refer to page 84 of the 
AGSA Report under Part F: Financial Information.

2.	 OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE

2.1.	 Service Delivery Environment

The year under review was indeed a period of stabilisation and recovery, as envisaged and outlined by the Minister in the 
2022/23 Annual Performance Plan. It was during this year that restrictions on economic and social activities were lifted and 
most state institutions reverted back to 100% in-person operational capacity, subsequent to the confirmation that COVID-19 
was no longer deemed a pandemic. This implied that the service delivery environment within which the Department operates 
had largely returned to ‘normalcy’. The aftermath of the crisis also resulted in a general increase in the demand for the 
services provided by the Department, given that the interface with communities and stakeholders was now unrestricted. This 
increased demand also included a more hands-on approach in terms of the strategic support provided to the Minister of Police 
in the execution of his oversight mandate.

At the commencement of the reporting period, the Department embarked on the relocation to its office accommodation. The 
move came with its own unique set of opportunities and challenges, including the lack of telephone lines and interruptions in 
terms of accessibility to Information and Communication Technology (ICT) systems. In spite of some of the teething problems 
associated with the relocation; the Department managed to achieve twenty-five (25) out of its twenty-eight (28) predetermined 
objectives, translating into an annual performance score of 89%.

In terms of the services which the Department delivers directly to the public, the following achievements can be noted:

CSF Facilitation Workshops
Community Safety Forums (CSFs) remain one of the key safety structures in communities that coordinate safety initiatives 
at a local level and promote development through access to high quality services in municipalities by way of collaboration 
with other State institutions. The core mandate of CSFs is to facilitate community participation in safety, crime and violence 
interventions, as envisaged in the CSF Policy. In contribution to the promotion of safer communities during the period under 
review, the Department facilitated thirteen (13) CSF workshops in municipalities across the country, inclusive of workshops 
with community safety portfolio councilors in Mpumalanga, Western Cape, Northern Cape and Gauteng.

Capacity-Building Workshops on Crime Prevention Policies
The Department continues to focus on structured community interaction in the pursuit of enhanced community involvement 
and participation in safety programmes. This approach includes conducting capacity-building workshops to create awareness 
on existing Justice, Crime Prevention and Safety (JCPS) cluster policies, services and available knowledge products in 
order to encourage coordination, collaboration and implementation of these instruments in addressing crime and criminality 
at grassroots level. During the reporting period, the Department conducted thirteen (13) capacity-building workshops on 
crime prevention policies, yet again exceeding the planned target of nine (9) workshops. This was demonstrative of the high 
demand for the Department’s services by provinces, municipalities and other stakeholders during the course of the year.
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Anti-Crime Campaigns, Izimbizo, and Public Participation Programmes
The Department conducts anti-crime campaigns in collaboration with public-private partners on the basis of agreed-upon 
initiatives through signed working agreements. The campaigns are focused on social crime prevention initiatives on burning 
issues such as responsible alcohol trade and use, gender-based violence (GBV), school and campus safety, and the protection 
of vulnerable groups. During the 2022/23 financial year, four (4) anti-crime campaigns took place in response to the rise in 
reported GBV and gang-related cases.

The Izimbizo and public participation programmes facilitated by the Department provide a platform for dialogue on crime 
prevention initiatives between communities and the Minister of Police. The high crime levels, including the scourge of GBV 
and violence against children, necessitated the conducting of additional Izimbizo during the period under review. In relation 
to the planned target of eight (8) Izimbizo, a total of seventeen (17) took place, as part of the Ministerial public participation 
programme. The Department also developed response plans as a mechanism to provide feedback on matters raised by 
communities during their engagements with the Minister.

2.2.	 Service Delivery Improvement Plan

During the period under review, the Department continued to comply with the reporting requirements set by the Department 
of Public Service and Administration (DPSA) in terms of its approved Operations Management Framework (OMF). The 
Department does not, however, have adequate capacity to develop a comprehensive Service Delivery Improvement 
Plan (SDIP) at this stage. Provision for the requisite capacity will be made in the revised organisational structure, and the 
implementation of the structure at a micro-level will be dependent on the availability of funds, once the necessary concurrence 
and approvals have been obtained.  

2.3.	 Organisational Environment

At the end of the period under review, the Department had filled 146 of its 157 post establishment, resulting in a vacancy 
rate of 7%. There are three (3) people with disabilities employed in the Department, which translates into 2,10% of the staff 
complement. This implies that the Department remained compliant with the 2% equity target for employment of persons with 
disabilities, during the reporting period. 

7%

9,62%

9,55%

7%

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12%

Q1 OF 2022/23

Q2 OF 2022/23

Q3 OF 2022/23

Q4 OF 2022/23

Figure 3: Vacancy Rate
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Out of the 146 positions filled, 81 are females, translating into 55% of the staff complement; while 65 are males, or 45% of 
the staff complement. In terms of gender parity at the Senior Management Service (SMS) level, of the 27 SMS members, 16 
(59% of the staff complement) are females and 11 (41% of the staff complement) are males. This implies that the Department 
remained compliant with the national target of 50% female representation at SMS level.

Figure 4: Employment Equity
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The number of youth employed in the Department consists of 28 females and 25 males, inclusive of 10 Work Integrated 
Learners (WIL). The Department therefore remains compliant with the obligation to ensure that at least 30% of its staff 
complement comprises of young people (employees below the age of 35).

2.4	 Key Policy Developments and Legislative Changes

In the 2022/23 financial year, the Criminal Law (Forensic Procedures) Amendment Bill was assented to and signed by the 
President in December 2022. A signed Proclamation was published in the Gazette on 24 February 2023, which outlined 3 
March 2023 as the date of commencement of the Bill. In addition, the Protection of Constitutional Democracy Against Terrorist 
and Related Activities (POCDATARA) Amendment Bill was assented to and signed by the President on 29 December 2022 
and published in the Gazette. The Proclamation Notice to put the Bill into operation was published in the Gazette on 4 January 
2023.

3.	 ACHIEVEMENT OF INSTITUTIONAL IMPACTS AND OUTCOMES

During the reporting period, the Department undertook a process to develop a theory of change (ToC) to underpin its five-year 
strategy and clarify how the planned outcomes and interventions are expected to lead to the envisaged five-year impact. The 
intention of the theory of change process was also to enable the Department to assess its strategy by identifying the original 
assumptions made when the strategy was designed, and assist in clearly mapping the change process towards expected 
outcomes. The outcome of the application of the ToC process also took into consideration the impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic on the environment within which the CSPS operates. The ToC process was undertaken in line with DPME’s revised 
framework on strategic and annual performance plans (RFSAPP) and other relevant guidelines. 
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The ToC process culminated into a revised impact statement “communities feel and are safe”, which is aligned to the revised 
2019-2024 MTSF and the overall impact statement of the safety sector. The institutional outcome indicators were also revised 
as follows:

•	 Strengthened community police relations;
•	 Transformed and accountable police service;
•	 Strengthened community participation in the fight against crime;
•	 Strengthened collaboration, coordination and integration towards the implementation of the Integrated Crime and Violence 

Prevention Strategy; 
•	 Strengthened relationship between SAPS and CSPS to ensure responsive policing; and
•	 CSPS as a centre of excellence for policing policies and strategies.  

The CSPS’ emergent TOC is being incrementally implemented in order to allow for full institutionalisation of the new approach 
by the entire organisation. It will also be reviewed and improved upon as key lessons are learnt through the implementation 
process.  

Notwithstanding the above, there has been some progress made towards the achievement of the revised impact statement 
and outcomes as articulated in the revised Strategic Plan. The Department continues to be instrumental in facilitating 
community participation in safety by playing a supportive role in the establishment of CSFs and through the assessment of 
the functionality of CPFs, accompanied by recommendations for improvement. The Department also continues to provide 
training in order to equip CPF members to support policing and crime prevention initiatives at a local level, an exercise which 
is integral to the implementation of the Community Policing Policy and the Cabinet-approved ICVPS.

Efforts to strengthen community police relations have seen the Department also direct its focus towards the development 
of response plans as a mechanism for providing feedback on matters raised between communities and the Minister during 
dialogues / public participation programmes. The aim is to determine the status of implementation of those particular matters, 
and also serve as a barometer for the impact of the public participation interventions on the ground. Three response plans 
were developed during the reporting period, covering follow-ups made in KwaZulu-Natal, Western Cape and Gauteng.

At the beginning of the five-year period, the Department signed an MOU with Memeza Shout NGO, as part of the 
implementation of the Partnership Strategy and Framework. The work done in collaboration with Memeza has gained some 
traction; and during the reporting period, that collaboration led to the installation of rapid response alarms for the protection of 
school infrastructure in 21 schools located in Gauteng and KwaZulu-Natal respectively. Measures such as these are aimed 
at contributing to the improvement of safety in schools, in line with the school safety protocol.

During the reporting period, the Department also embarked on a joint project with Provincial Secretariats on the alignment of 
Provincial Safety Strategies with the 2016 WPSS and the ICVPS. The outcomes of this research product contributes to the 
outcome on strengthening collaboration, coordination, and integration towards the implementation of the ICVPS.
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5.	 TRANSFER PAYMENTS

Transfer payments to public entities

This table relates to Public Entities who received funding from the Department: 

Name of Public Entity
Key Outputs of the 

Public Entity

Amount 
transferred to 

the Public Entity

Amount spent 
by the Public 

Entity
Achievements of the Public Entity

South African Safety 
and Security Education 
and Training Authority 
(SASSETA)

Reduce the scarce and 
critical skills gap in the 
Security Sector through 
the provisioning of quality 
learning programmes.

R107 462,00 R107 462,00 Increased skills of the Safety and 
security Sector workforce by providing 
occupationally directed learning 
programmes that contribute to the 
transformation and professionalism of the 
Sector. 

Transfer payments to all organisations other than public entities

The table below reflects the transfer payments made for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023:

Name of 
transferee

Type of 
organisation

Purpose for which the funds were used

Did the Dept. 
comply with 
s 38 (1) (j) of 

the PFMA

Amount 
transferred

(R’000)

Amount 
spent 
by the 
Entity

Reasons for 
the funds 

unspent by 
the Entity

City of Tshwane Municipality Vehicle License Registration and Renewal 
Fees

N/A 13 13

Chauke SW Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 32 32

Xaba J Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 38 38

Mlangeni T J Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 62 62

Mafologela M Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 93 93

Mahlatsi MA Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 43 43

Jacobs P Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 29 29

Boikanyo TP Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 52 52

Bida LG Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 7 7

Badimo MM Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 7 7

Ambani RW Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 6 6

Binca LG Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 8 8

Rakgoale KS Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 5 5

Msomi NT Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 6 6

Mashota EP Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 3 3

Ngobeni F Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 2 2

Makgopa MG Employee Employee Service Benefit: Leave Gratuity N/A 3 3

The table below reflects the transfer payments which were budgeted for in the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023, but no 
transfer payments were made:

Name of transferee
Purpose for which the 
funds were to be used

Amount budgeted for
(R’000)

Amount transferred
(R’000)

Reasons why funds 
were not transferred

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
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6.	 CONDITIONAL GRANTS

The Department did not receive or pay any conditional grants for the reporting period.

7.	 DONOR FUNDS

Name of donor N/A

Full amount of the funding N/A

Period of the commitment N/A

Purpose of the funding N/A

Expected outputs N/A

Actual outputs achieved N/A

Amount received in current period (R’000) N/A

Amount spent by the department (R’000) N/A

Reasons for the funds unspent N/A

Monitoring mechanism by the donor N/A

The Department did not receive any donor funds during the reporting period.

8.	 CAPITAL INVESTMENT

The Department does not have a Capital Investment and Asset Management Plan. The process of procuring office 
accommodation was underway during the period under review.
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PART C: 
GOVERNANCE

Integrity & 
Fairness



1.	 INTRODUCTION

The Management of the CSPS is committed to the delivery of the departmental mandate, which is informed by Section 
208 of the Constitution and the relevant legislative framework. In the execution of this mandate, the Department adheres 
to the principle of integrity, ethical values, and the rule of law, which forms the basis of the entire governance framework. 
This provides the taxpayer with assurance and confidence that the Department has good governance structures in place to 
effectively, efficiently, and economically utilise state resources.

2.	 RISK MANAGEMENT

2.1	 Risk Management Policy and Strategy

In compliance with Section 38 of the PFMA, the Department has an approved Risk Management Policy and Strategy, which 
provide guidance on how to implement risk management effectively and efficiently within the Department. The Strategy 
outlines the plan of action on how to improve the departmental risk maturity level through a set of comprehensive activities 
highlighted in the Risk Management Implementation Plan. This plan has been critically engaged at an Executive Risk 
Management and Ethics Committee level and endorsed by the Acting Accounting Officer, as recommended by the Audit and 
Risk Committee (ARC). In the period under review, the Department successfully achieved all the activities as per the plan. 

2.2	 Risk Management Maturity  

With a view to enhancing and improving the risk culture and risk maturity level as indicated in the Risk Management Strategy, 
the Department embarked on a Risk Maturity Self-Assessment during the reporting period, as prescribed by National Treasury. 
The assessment was done to identify areas of improvement which would enable the Department to clearly develop new ways 
to better implement risk management. The self-assessment placed the Department at level 3, which stipulates that the 
current risk management processes, practices, and systems fulfill the legislative requirements; however, these mechanisms 
have limited influence on the control environment. The assessment result has subsequently afforded the Department an 
opportunity to better position itself by finding new and creative ways of doing things, which will enable it to move to a higher 
risk maturity level.     

2.3	 Risk Assessment 

In line with an approved Risk Management Implementation Plan, the Department has regularly assessed significant risks 
both at strategic and operational levels that could have an impact on the achievement of its outcomes, as articulated in 
the Strategic Plan. These risks were prioritised based on likelihood and impact (inherently and residually) and additional 
mitigations were agreed upon to reduce risks to acceptable levels. In the year under review, the Department identified ten (10) 
strategic risks and fifty-seven (57) operational risks. In addition, a fraud risk assessment was conducted with specific focus 
on financial administration processes, supply chain management processes and human resources management processes 
to minimise the impact of exposing the Department to any fraudulent activities which may be detrimental. The fraud risk 
assessment was concluded with twenty-one (21) fraud risks identified. 

2.4 	 Progress in the Management of Risks 

The management of all departmental risks at strategic, operational and fraud levels remains a fundamental priority in promoting 
effective governance and enhancing the risk management culture. The Department continued to monitor the progress of risks 
through the implementation of mitigation actions plans, and regular reporting to the Executive Risk Management and Ethics 
Committee and the ARC.

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service  Annual Report 2022|2023 41



2.5	 Audit and Risk Committee

The Department has a fully constituted and functional combined ARC, established in terms of the Public Finance Management 
Act, PFMA and National Treasury Regulations. The ARC is chaired by an independent chairperson and consists of three (3) 
non-executive members. The Executive Committee (EXCO) members and other Directors are standing invitees to the ARC 
meetings. The ARC plays a significant role in ensuring compliance with good corporate governance principles, aiding the 
Accounting Officer in the management of the CSPS’ risks.  

3.	 FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

3.1	 CSPS Fraud Prevention Plan and the Progress Made in the Implementation 
	 Thereof

The Department has an approved Fraud Prevention Plan (FPP) which emphasises the promotion of ethics, combatting 
fraud and corruption, theft maladministration, and other acts of misconduct. To support and implement the FPP effectively, 
the Department embarked on a process to review and approve a Fraud Policy. In line with FPP, awareness workshops were 
conducted and internal controls were improved through the identification and assessment of fraud risks. In addition, the CSPS 
has ensured that all officials are accountable for the implementation of the FPP by outlining their roles and responsibilities in 
terms of the response strategies to fraud and corruption. The Department has a Gift and Hospitality Policy and a Remunerative 
Work Outside Public Service Policy in place which provide guidance in the monitoring of possible conflicts.

3.2 	 Mechanisms in Place to Report Fraud and Corruption and how these Operate

The Department has an approved Whistle-Blowing Policy which outlines the methods and procedures used to report activities 
of fraud and corruption. All reported fraud and corruption cases were investigated and referred to the relevant institutions 
and authorities depending on the outcome of the preliminary investigation. The Department continues to protect employees 
regarding confidential disclosures, in terms of the Protected Disclosure Act 26 of 2000. The Department supports the National 
Anti-Corruption Hotline by encouraging all employees to report any suspected activities of fraud and corruption through this 
platform. 

3.3 	 Reporting of Cases and Action Taken

The Whistle-Blowing Policy outlines all internal and external fraud and corruption reporting mechanisms. All reported cases 
were registered and investigated with the outcomes of the investigation determining the actions taken to prevent, deter and 
detect activities of fraud and corruption.

4.	 MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Department continued to put measures in place to mitigate conflict of interest for all key officials. During the period under 
review, the Department was required to submit financial disclosures for all Senior Management Services Members and all 
Assistant Directors including the newly appointed officials in selected categories to identify and assess any conflict of interest. 
During this period, the Department attained 100% compliance on the submission of financial disclosures. All Supply Chain 
Management (SCM) practitioners were required to sign the Code of Conduct for SCM Practitioners and the SCM Committees 
were required to sign a declaration of interest during committee meetings. In addition, all CSPS employees are required to 
obtain permission from the Accounting Officer to perform remunerative work outside of the public service. In instances where 
a conflict of interest is identified, disciplinary action is taken in accordance with the relevant prescripts.
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5.	 CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct in the Department is regulated and implemented in line with the Public Service Code of Conduct. 
Workshops are conducted from time to time in collaboration with the Ethics and Governance Unit. The Code of Conduct 
forms part of the discussion and presentation for the newly appointed employees during induction and orientation.  All new 
SMS members are required to enrol for the National School of Government (NSG) induction programme and the SMS 
entry programme where the issues of Code of Conduct and Batho Pele Principles are taught and emphasised. The Code of 
Conduct, specifically for Open Spaces, was developed to enhance good behaviour in the Department, and was approved by 
the Secretary. Those who are found to have breached the Code of Conduct are investigated and the necessary disciplinary 
steps will be taken.  

6.	 HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

During the period under review, the Department successfully completed its relocation to new office premises. This transition 
marked a milestone for the Department, as it aimed to enhance its operations in a better and improved physical environment. 
However, the process of relocation was not without its challenges, specifically with regards to Occupational Health and Safety 
(OHS), which is one of the four (4) pillars of the Employee Health and Wellness Strategy. 

During the move a number of health hazards emerged, which posed a potential risk to the health and well-being of the 
Department’s employees.  Consequently, the OHS policy was developed and approved and the implementation of this Policy 
remains a priority for the Department. The Environmental Sustainability Strategy was also developed and is in the process of 
being implemented, to further implementation of the OHS Policy.  

The OHS committee has been established and holds meetings on a quarterly basis.  Members have been trained and are 
responsible to identify and report all hazards in the Department. Fire drills were arranged and conducted in collaboration with 
the City of Tshwane and all departments that reside in the building to equip employees with the skills needed to respond in 
the event of a fire. In addition, SHE bins were procured and installed in female ablution facilities during the reporting period.  

The following Health, Safety and Environment programmes were undertaken by the Department in the period under review:  

•	 The ICAS Employee Wellness Programme was launched in collaboration, supplemented by health screening programmes;  
•	 Workshops were held focusing on workplace bullying, and awareness on breast and prostate cancer; 
•	 A conference themed ‘Public service women meeting week’ was held, which focused on empowering women on health 

matters; and
•	 The Department also commemorated World AIDS day.  
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7.	 PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES

The following table lists relevant meetings held by Parliamentary Committees during the year under review, matters raised, 
and the response of the Department. 

Date of the Meeting
Parliamentary 

Committee
Purpose of the Meeting

Matters raised by the 
Committee

Response by the Department

22 April 2022 Portfolio 
Committee on 
Police 

Briefing by CSPS on inputs into 
the Annual Performance Plan 
for 2022/23

Status of the CSFs 
nationally and how 
the local government 
elections will affect the 
establishment of CSFs 

There were 141 CSFs, however, the 
actual number will be presented after 
local government elections because 
it is dependent on the configuration 
of wards after elections

The impact of the 
Department, especially at 
ground level

The Department has crafted its 
outcome indicators in such a way that 
it will be able to measure its impact 
on the ground

04 May 2022 NCOP 
Security and 
Justice

CSPS & IPID Annual 
Performance Plans for 2022/23

Why there were budget 
cuts across the board 

The budget issue is widespread and 
is not unique to the Department 

What measures were put  
in place to ensure each 
police station in every 
province has a victim 
friendly room (VFR)

The Department is trying its best 
to push for every station to have 
victim-friendly rooms (VFRs) and 
will continue to follow up on stations 
which do not yet have VFRs

Issue of vacant posts and 
the departments attempts 
and plans to resolve it

The Department is doing everything 
it can to fill vacancies within three 
months

04 May 2022 Portfolio 
Committee on 
Police

SAPS, IPID, CSPS and PSIRA 
Budgets: Committee Report

There were no issues 
raised 

No response was required 

11 May 2022 Portfolio 
Committee on 
Police

Criminal Law (Forensic 
Procedures) Amendment Bill: 
adoption

There were no issues 
raised 

No response was required 

25 May 2022 Portfolio 
Committee on 
Police 

SAPS & CSPS on 
implementation of the Domestic 
Violence Act, crime statistics 
focused on GBVF, and the roll-
out and implementation of the 
GBV Desk at police stations

What measures were 
in place to improve 
the availability of sign 
language interpreters at 
police stations
 

The department only makes 
recommendations to SAPS to source 
interpreters in places identified. At 
the time, 52% of police stations had 
access to sign language interpreters.

10 August 2022 NCOP 
Security and 
Justice 

Criminal Law (Forensic 
Procedures) Amendment Bill: 
Ministry of Police & SAPS on 
public comments

Whether this Bill affected 
foreign nationals the same 
way it affected South 
Africans

The Bill applied equally to any 
persons arrested in South Africa

24 August 2022 Portfolio 
Committee on 
Police 

Critical Infrastructure 
Protection Act draft regulations 
& discussion on police

There were generally 
concerns about the 
council not commencing 
with its work

No response was required 

31 August 2022 Portfolio 
Committee on 
Police 

Finalising Critical Infrastructure 
Protection Act draft regulations 
& Briefing on Protection of 
Constitutional Democracy 
against Terrorist and Related 
Activities Amendment Bill

The timeframe provided 
for public comments was 
a major concern 

More time will be awarded for public 
comments, after consultation with the 
House Chairperson 
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Date of the Meeting
Parliamentary 

Committee
Purpose of the Meeting

Matters raised by the 
Committee

Response by the Department

07 September 2022 Portfolio 
Committee on 
Police 

Protection of Constitutional 
Democracy against Terrorist 
and Related Activities 
Amendment Bill: public 
hearings; SAPS 2022/23 APP 
Addendum

There were no comments 
raised by the committee 

No response was required 

14 September 2022 Portfolio 
Committee on 
Police 

Protection of Constitutional 
Democracy against Terrorist 
and Related Activities 
Amendment Bill: Department 
response to submissions

There were no comments 
raised by the committee 

No response was required 

21 September 2022 Portfolio 
Committee on 
Police 

Protection of Constitutional 
Democracy against Terrorist 
and Related Activities 
Amendment Bill: response 
to submissions; Legislative 
Programme

There were no comments 
raised by the committee 

No response was required 

19 October 2022 Portfolio 
Committee on 
Police 

DNA Board Annual Report 
2021/22; SAPS, IPID, CSPS 
and PSIRA BRRRs

There were no comments 
raised by the committee 

No response was required 

26 October 2022 Portfolio 
Committee on 
Police 

Protection of Constitutional 
Democracy against Terrorist 
and Related Activities 
Amendment Bill: public 
hearings and Department 
response

There were no comments 
raised by the committee 

No response was required 

11 November 2022 Portfolio 
Committee on 
Police

Protection of Constitutional 
Democracy against Terrorist 
and Related Activities 
Amendment Bill: further 
deliberations; Public 
Participation Report

There were no comments 
raised by the committee 

No response was required 

30 November 2022 NCOP 
Security and 
Justice

Protection of Constitutional 
Democracy Against Terrorist 
and Related Activities 
Amendment Bill: briefing

There were no comments 
raised by the committee 

No response was required 

07 December 2022 NCOP 
Security and 
Justice 

Protection of Constitutional 
Democracy Against Terrorist 
and Related Activities 
Amendment Bill: Public 
Hearings

There were no comments 
raised by the committee 

No response was required to be 
provided 

08 December 2022 NCOP 
Security and 
Justice 

Protection of Constitutional 
Democracy Against Terrorist 
and Related Activities 
Amendment Bill: response to 
submissions

There were no comments 
raised by the committee 

No response was required to be 
provided 

09 December 2022 NCOP 
Security and 
Justice 

Protection of Constitutional 
Democracy Against Terrorist 
and Related Activities 
Amendment Bill: deliberations

Issues were raised in 
relation to the definition of 
terrorism in the Bill

There was a proposal to include 
violence in the new definition

15 March 2023 Portfolio 
Committee on 
Police

Integrated Crime Prevention 
Strategy: CSPS briefing

Did the Department 
consult their provincial 
counterparts 

The provinces were duly consulted in 
developing the strategy and there will 
be continuous collaboration towards 
implementation

How did this strategy fit 
into the amendment of the 
SAPS Act

The strategy was factored into the 
Amendment Bill with final stages in 
view
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8.	 SCOPA RESOLUTIONS

The table below represents SCOPA resolutions specific to the Department, and details pertaining to the resolution made by 
the Department with regard to each resolution.

Resolution No. Subject Details Response by the Department Resolved (Yes/No)

NA N/A N/A N/A N/A

During the period under review, the Department did not appear before the Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA).

9.	 PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORTS

The table below outlines mechanisms put in place by the Accounting Officer to resolve the matters reported by AGSA in the 
previous financial year. 

Nature of qualification, disclaimer, adverse opinion and matters of 
non-compliance

Financial year in which it 
first arose

Progress made in clearing / 
resolving the matter

N/A N/A N/A

During the period under review, the Department received an unqualified audit with no findings (clean audit). 

10.	 INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The Department has not established an Internal Control Unit, however, Line Management is responsible for the identification, 
design, management, and monitoring of the internal control environment to provide a cost-effective assurance of the financial 
wellness and financial management of the Department. The Internal Audit Unit evaluates the internal control environment for 
adequacy, appropriateness, efficiency, and effectiveness.

11.	 INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

Key activities and objectives of the internal audit
The key Internal Audit activities include Planning, Fieldwork, Execution, and Reporting. The objectives of Internal Audit are 
to minimise risks, protect assets, ensure the accuracy and completeness of records, promote operational efficiencies, and 
encourage adherence to legislation, regulations, policies, and procedures. Internal Audit keeps stringent control over all the 
activities of the Department and provides reasonable assurance that the Department’s risk management, governance, and 
internal control processes are operating as intended.

Summary of audit work conducted
During the period under review, the Internal Audit Activity completed 25 of the planned risk-based projects. The Internal Audit 
Activity reviews encompassed the following areas:

•	 Policy Development and Research processes;
•	 Civilian Oversight, Monitoring and Evaluation processes;
•	 Human Resource Development processes;
•	 Finance Management processes;
•	 Supply Chain Management processes;
•	 Review of the Annual and Interim Financial Statements;
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•	 Asset management verification review; 
•	 Review of Quarterly Performance Management Information; 
•	 Review of the Annual Performance Plan;
•	 Mid-Term review of the Strategic Plan;
•	 Follow up on Internal and External Audit Findings; and
•	 Provision of Direct Assistance to the AGSA.

Key activities and objectives of the Audit Committee
The role of the Audit Committee is to support the Department in fulfilling its governance and oversight responsibilities in 
relation to financial reporting, internal control structures, risk management, internal and external audit functions including 
ethical accountability, and compliance with applicable legislation, laws and regulations. In addition, the Committee assists the 
Accounting Officer in executing his responsibilities to ensure that the Department’s objectives are achieved.

The table below discloses relevant information on the Audit Committee members:

Name Qualifications
Internal or 
external

If internal, 
position 

in the 
Department

Date 
appointed

Date 
resigned

No. of 
meetings 
attended

Ms Jane Masite

(Chairperson 
effective 1 
September 2022)

B.Com; Chartered Internal Auditor; 
Qualification in Internal Audit Leadership; 
Certified Internal Auditor; Certified Fraud 
Examination

External N/A 1 July 2018

Reappointed
1 July 2020

N/A 5

Mr Matsobane 
Matlwa

(Chairperson until 
31 August 2022)

CA (SA); MSC; MBA; CTA; B. Compt 
Honours.

External N/A 1 September 
2019

Reappointed
1 September 

2022

N/A 3

Ms Jo-Anne 
Savari

Certified Internal Auditor; Fellow of ACCA; 
Prince 2 Practitioner; BSC Honours; Applied 
Accounting; Higher Diploma in Education; 
Masters of Arts; Bachelor of Arts; Bachelor of 
Arts Honours

External N/A 1 September 
2019

Reappointed
1 September 

2022

N/A 4

Mr Odwa Benxa CA (SA); Higher Diploma in Accountancy; 
Bachelor in Accounting Science; Leadership 
Development Programme

External N/A 1 September 
2022

N/A 3
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12.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2023.

Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 38(1)(a)(ii) of the Public Finance 
Management Act No. 1 of 1999 (PFMA) and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted 
appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter 
and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. 

The Audit Committee Charter is updated annually and complies with the requirements of the PFMA. The Audit Committee 
performs an oversight function covering the following:
•	 Financial Management;
•	 Performance Information Management;
•	 Information and Communications Technology (ICT) Governance;
•	 Risk Management;
•	 External Audit;
•	 Internal Audit; and
•	 Compliance with applicable Laws, Regulations and Ethics.

Independence of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is independent of management in the execution of its duties.  

The Effectiveness of Internal Control and Risk Management 
The Department has an established risk management process and high risks are regularly monitored. Our review of the 
findings of the Internal Audit work, which was based on the risk assessments conducted in the Department, revealed certain 
weaknesses, which were then raised with Management for corrective action where necessary. 

Management is responsible for the system of internal controls. These are designed to provide Management with reasonable, 
but not absolute, assurance as to the reliability of the financial statements, to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain 
accountability of assets, and prevent and detect misstatements and losses. 

Internal Audit
The Audit Committee is satisfied that the Internal Audit function is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks 
pertinent to the Department in its audit reviews. 

Internal Audit coverage for the year under review
The Committee approved the Risk-Based and Three-Year Rolling Audit plans, for the period under review, covering the 
following key audit activities:

•	 Policy Development and Research processes;
•	 Civilian Oversight, Monitoring and Evaluation processes;
•	 Human Resource Development processes;
•	 Finance Management processes;
•	 Supply Chain Management processes;
•	 Review of Annual and Interim Financial Statements;
•	 Asset Management verification;
•	 Review of Quarterly Performance Management Information; 
•	 Review of the Annual Performance Plan;
•	 Mid-Term Review of the Strategic Plan;
•	 Follow up on Internal and External Audit Findings; and
•	 Provision of Direct Assistance to the AGSA.
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Where the review of the findings of the Internal Audit work revealed certain weaknesses, these were raised with the Department 
and Management undertook corrective actions where necessary. 

In-Year Management and Monthly and Quarterly Reports 
Management has been reporting monthly and quarterly as required by the PFMA. Reports were reviewed and found to be of 
a good quality.

Annual Report
The Committee has reviewed the Annual Report per the legislative requirements.

Evaluation of Financial Statements and Annual Performance Report
We have reviewed the Annual Financial Statements and performance report prepared by the Department for the year ended 
31 March 2023 and duly recommended them for the Accounting Officer’s approval prior to being submitted to the AGSA for 
audit. There were no material misstatements identified through the audit process as reported by the AGSA in the management 
and audit reports, which were also discussed with the AGSA.

Auditor-General of South Africa’s (AGSA) Report 
We have reviewed the Department’s implementation plan regarding audit issues raised in the previous year and are satisfied 
that the matters have been adequately resolved. 

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the conclusion of the AGSA on the Annual Financial Statements and Annual 
Performance Report and is of the opinion that the Audited Annual Financial Statements should be accepted and read together 
with the report of the AGSA.

Appreciation
The Audit Committee wishes to acknowledge the commitment and support of the Minister, AGSA, Acting Secretary, 
Management Team, and staff of the Civilian Secretariat for Police Service towards maintaining and retaining an unqualified 
audit opinion with no findings (clean audit). 

____________________________________
Sedie Jane Masite, CIA, CFE, CICP, CMIIA
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
31 July 2023
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13.	 B-BBEE COMPLIANCE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

The following table has been completed in accordance with compliance to requirements of the B-BBEE Act of 2013 and as 
determined by the Department of Trade, Industry and Competition.

Has the Sphere of Government / Public Entity / Organ of State applied any relevant Code of Good Practice (B-BBEE Certificate 
Levels 1 – 8) with regards to the following:

Criteria Circle relevant answer Attachment

Determining qualification criteria for the issuing of 
licenses, concessions, or other authorisations in respect 
of economic activity in terms of any law

No Not applicable to the Department

Developing and implementing a preferential procurement 
policy

No The preferential point scoring system is 
incorporated into the approved Procurement Policy 

Determining qualification criteria for the sale of state-
owned enterprises

No Not applicable to the Department

Developing criteria for entering into partnerships with the 
private sector

No Not applicable to the Department

Determining criteria for the awarding of incentives, 
grants, and investment schemes in support of Broad-
Based Black Economic Empowerment

No Not applicable to the Department
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1.	 INTRODUCTION 

1.1	 The Status of Human Resources in the Department   

The Department started the period under review with a post establishment of 156, which was subsequently increased to 
157 posts in October 2022. As at the end of the period under review, the Department had filled 146 posts of its approved 
establishment of 157 funded posts. This resulted in a vacancy rate of 7%, remaining well below the acceptable threshold 
which has been set for the Public Service. Through the Integrated Human Capital Strategy and other related operational 
strategies, the Department was able to maintain its achievement of all employment equity targets, including ensuring that 
female representation at senior management level (and broadly in the staff complement) remained above 50%.  

The Department also continues to ensure that at least 30% of its staff complement comprises young people (employees below 
the age of 35), and as at the end of the reporting period, there was a total of 53 young people employed in the Department.  
This figure consists of 28 females and 23 males, inclusive of 10 Work Integrated Learners (WILs).

1.2	 Human Resource Priorities for the Year Under Review and the Impact of These  

The human resource priorities for the year under review included the filling of critical vacant posts that impact on the capacity 
of the Department to deliver on its mandate, particularly in the core business units. The continued implementation of the 
Integrated Human Capital Strategy, through its five-year rolling implementation plan, also remained central to the advancement 
of the broader organisational strategy. 

1.3	 Workforce Planning and Key Strategies to Attract and Recruit a Skilled and 
	 Capable Workforce

The approved three-year HR Plan continues to inform workforce planning in the Department, through the identification of 
capacity gaps and forecasting of the skills and competencies that the Department will require to achieve its institutional 
outcomes. An integral component of the Integrated Human Capital Strategy is the implementation of the approved Recruitment, 
Selection and Retention Strategy, as well as the Recruitment and Retention Policy, the main purpose of which are to ensure 
the capacitation of the Department with the necessary critical and scarce skills to support the achievement of its strategic 
objectives.

To capacitate the Department to successfully execute its mandate, a proposed organisational structure with 34 prioritised 
posts has been developed and preliminarily consulted with the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA) for 
advise, guidance and alignment with relevant organisational design guidelines. The DPSA has provided pre-concurrence in 
this regard, and the proposed organisational structure is awaiting funding. Once all the necessary requirements have been 
met, the Department will develop an internal implementation plan for the proposed organisational structure for incremental 
implementation over the MTEF period. 

1.4	 Employee Performance Management 

An effective performance management system plays a pivotal role in ensuring that the organisation achieves its strategic 
objectives and improves its organisational performance. Furthermore, it is also prudent to ensure that there is a link 
between the strategic plan of the Department and the operational plans of the various business units. There is currently a 
comprehensive performance management system in place which includes the signing of performance agreements at the 
beginning of each financial year, and assessments of performance at the end of the financial year. In the previous financial 
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years, the Department introduced the moderation of performance agreements to ensure that they are linked to the institutional 
outcomes as articulated in the Strategic Plan. The Department succeeded in the finalisation of all performance assessments 
for 2021/22 for all levels, including the Senior Management level. 

1.5	 Employee Wellness Programmes 

The Department has a dedicated employee who is responsible for all matters related to employee health and wellness. The 
Department also introduced an Employee Assistance or Health Promotion Programme, which assists in the provision of 
reasonable accommodation in the form of assisting devices, psychosocial assessment, and referrals to external stakeholders, 
follow up services and after care services for employees who experience challenges. 

The Department has also put measures in place to protect Human Immune Deficiency Virus (HIV)-positive employees or 
those perceived to be HIV-positive from discrimination by ensuring confidentiality of the information disclosed by employees. 
The Department has appointed a service provider to provide 24-hour health and wellness services to all employees and their 
immediate family members.

1.6	 Achievements and Challenges Faced by the Department, as well as Future Human 
	 Resource Plans / Goals

The positive impact of an integrated approach to strategic human resource management in the Department has been evident 
through the attainment of consistently high levels of organisational performance over the past three years. Through this 
Strategy, the training and development of employees in key areas aligned to the mandate of the Department, has been 
prioritised. Significant strides have also been made to address and maintain gender parity and to maintain compliance with 
employment equity targets, as set by DPSA and the Department of Labour.

A critical challenge remains the filling of the position of the Secretary for Police Service, which is being addressed through the 
finalisation of the macro-organisational structure and continuous engagements with DPSA and National Treasury.

In terms of future plans, it is envisaged that the 34 posts on the proposed organisational structure will be filled in order to 
ensure the expansion of the capacity of the Department in relation to its revised organisational strategy and emergent theory 
of change.   

2.	 HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 

2.1	 Personnel Related Expenditure

The following tables summarise the final audited personnel related expenditure by programme and by salary bands. In 
particular, it provides an indication of the following:

•	 amount spent on personnel; and 
•	 amount spent on salaries, overtime, homeowner’s allowances and medical aid. 
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Table 2.1.1 - Personnel expenditure by programme for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Programme

Total 
expenditure

Personnel 
expenditure

Training 
expenditure

Professional 
and special 

services 
expenditure

Personnel 
expenditure 

as a % of total 
expenditure

Average 
personnel cost 
per employee

(R’000) (R’000) (R’000) (R’000) (R’000)

Administration 73 049 47 265 234 683 64.70% 525

Inter-Sectoral 
Coordination 
and Strategic 
Partnerships 25 458 18 426 - - 72.40% 1 084

Legislation 
and Policy 
Development 20 826 16 390 - - 78.70% 863

Civilian 
Oversight, 
Monitoring and 
Evaluation 33 308 25 577 - 260 76.80% 673

Total 152 641 107 659 234 943 70.50% 656

Table 2.1.2 - Personnel costs by salary band for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Salary band
Personnel expenditure

% of total personnel 
cost

No. of employees
Average personnel cost 

per employee

(R’000) (R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 839 1.71% 12 153

Skilled (level 3-5) 9 157 8.51% 35 262

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8) 14 246 13.23% 33 432

Highly skilled supervision 
(levels 9-12) 46 732 43.41% 57 820

Senior and top 
management (levels 
13-16) 35 685 33.15% 27 1 322

Total 107 659 100.00% 164 656
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The number of employees includes 18 staff additional to the establishment.

Table 2.1.3 - Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by programme for the period 1 April 2022 
and 31 March 2023

Programme

Salaries Overtime Home Owners Allowance Medical Aid

Amount

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs

Amount

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs

Amount

HOA as 
a % of 

personnel 
costs

Amount

Medical aid 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs

(R’000) (R’000) (R’000) (R’000)

Administration 31 330 66.29% 1 132 2.40% 840 1.80% 1 787 3.80%

Inter-Sectoral 
Coordination 
and Strategic 
Partnerships 12 249 66.50% 155 0.80% 265 1.40% 655 3.60%

Legislation 
and Policy 
Development 11 246 68.62% 8 0.05% 125 0.80% 325 2.00%

Civilian 
Oversight, 
Monitoring and 
Evaluation 17 422 68.12% 148 0.60% 426 1.70% 883 3.50%

Total 72 247 67.10% 1 443 1.30% 1 656 1.50% 3 650 3.40%

Table 2.1.4 - Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by salary band for the period 1 April 2022 
and 31 March 2023

Salary band

Salaries Overtime Home Owners Allowance Medical Aid

Amount 

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs

Amount 

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs

Amount 
HOA as a % 
of personnel 

costs
Amount 

Medical aid 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs

(R’000) (R’000) (R’000) (R’000)

Skilled (level 
1-2)  1 452 79.00% 54 2.90% 94 5.10% 111 6.00%

Skilled (level 
3-5)  5 570 60.83% 396 4.30% 361 3.90% 659 7.20%

Highly skilled 
production 
(levels 6-8) 8 829 62.00% 512 3.60% 583 4.10% 1 100 7.70%

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(levels 9-12) 30 611 65.50% 481 1.00% 460 1.00% 1 523 3.30%

Senior 
management 
(level 13-16) 25 785 72.26% - 0% 158 0.40% 257 0.70%

Total 72 247 67.10% 1 443 1.30% 1 656 1.50% 3 650 3.40%
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2.2	 Employment and Vacancies

The tables in this section summarise the position with regard to employment and vacancies. The following tables summarise 
the number of posts on the establishment, the number of employees, the vacancy rate, and whether there are any staff that 
are additional to the establishment. 

This information is presented in terms of three key variables:

•	 Programme
•	 salary band
•	 critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Departments have identified critical occupations that need to be monitored. In terms of current regulations, it is possible to 
create a post on the establishment that can be occupied by more than one employee. Therefore, the vacancy rate reflects the 
percentage of posts that are not filled. 

Table - 2.2.1 Employment and vacancies by programme as on 31 March 2023

Programme
Number of posts on 

approved establishment
Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate

Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment

Administration 79 73 7.59% 17

Inter-Sectoral 
Coordination and 
Strategic Partnerships 17 17 100% 0

Legislation and Policy 
Development 21 18 14.28% 1

Civilian Oversight, 
Monitoring and Evaluation 40 38 5.00% 0

Total 157 146 7.00% 18

Table 2.2.2 Employment and vacancies by salary band as on 31 March 2023

Salary band
Number of posts on 

approved establishment
Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate

Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment

Lower skilled (1-2) 6 6 0% 2

Skilled (3-5) 21 19 9.52% 14

Highly skilled production 
(6-8) 37 36 2.70% 1

Highly skilled supervision 
(9-12) 61 58 4.92% 1

Senior management 
(13-16) 32 27 15.62% 0

Total 157 146 7.00% 18
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Table 2.2.3 Employment and vacancies by critical occupations as on 31 March 2023

Critical occupation
Number of posts on 

approved establishment
Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate

Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment

Director-General 1 0 100% 0

Chief Director 6 6 0% 0

Director 25 21 16.00% 0

Total 32 27 15.62% 0

2.3	 Filling of SMS Posts

The tables in this section provide information on employment and vacancies as it relates to members of the Senior Management 
Service by salary level. It also provides information on advertising and filling of SMS posts, reasons for not complying with 
prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps taken.

Table 2.3.1 - SMS post information as on 31 March 2023

SMS Level
Total number of 

funded SMS posts
Total number of 
SMS posts filled

% of SMS posts 
filled

Total number of 
SMS posts vacant

% of SMS posts 
vacant

Director-General/ 
Head of Department 0 0 0% 0 0%

Salary Level 16 1 0 0% 1 100%

Salary Level 15 0 0 0% 0 0%

Salary Level 14 6 6 100% 0 0%

Salary Level 13 25 21 84.00% 4 16.00%

Total 32 27 84.38% 5 15.62%

Table 2.3.2 SMS post information as on 30 September 2022

SMS Level
Total number of 

funded SMS posts
Total number of 
SMS posts filled

% of SMS posts 
filled

Total number of 
SMS posts vacant

% of SMS posts 
vacant

Director-General/ 
Head of Department N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Salary Level 16 1 0 0% 1 100%

Salary Level 15 0 0 0% 0 0%

Salary Level 14 6 6 100% 0 0%

Salary Level 13 25 20 80.00% 5 20.00%

Total 32 26 81.25% 6 18.75%

Table 2.3.3 -  Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

SMS Level

Advertising Filling of Posts

Number of vacancies per 
level advertised in 6 months 

of becoming vacant

Number of vacancies per 
level filled in 6 months of 

becoming vacant

Number of vacancies per 
level not filled in 6 months 

but filled in 12 months

Director-General/ Head of Department 0 0 0

Salary Level 16 0 0 0

Salary Level 15 0 0 0

Salary Level 14 0 0 0

Salary Level 13 4 0 0

Total 4 0 0
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Table 2.3.4 - Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS - Advertised within 6 months and 
filled within 12 months after becoming vacant for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months

N/A

	

Reasons for vacancies not filled within twelve months

N/A

Table 2.3.5 - Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes for filling SMS posts within 
12 months for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months

N/A

Reasons for vacancies not filled within six months

N/A

2.4	 Job Evaluation

Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate any job in his or her organisation. 
In terms of the Regulations, all vacancies on salary levels nine (9) and higher must be evaluated before they are filled. The 
following table summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year under review. The table also provides 
statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded or downgraded. 

Table 2.4.1 - Job Evaluation by salary band for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Salary band
Number of posts 

on approved 
establishment

Number 
of Jobs 

Evaluated

% of posts 
evaluated by 
salary bands

Posts Upgraded Posts downgraded

Number
% of posts 
evaluated

Number
% of posts 
evaluated

Lower Skilled (Levels1-2) 6 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 21 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 37 2 5.00% 0 0% 0 0%

Highly skilled supervision
(Levels 9-12) 61 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Senior Management 
Service Band A 25 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Senior Management 
Service Band B 6 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Senior Management 
Service Band C 0 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Senior Management 
Service Band D 1 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Total 157 0 6.00% 0 0% 0 0%

The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their post 
being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the number of posts upgraded since not all employees are 
automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of the posts upgraded could also be vacant.
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Table 2.4.2 - Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded for the period 
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Gender African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with a disability 0

The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration bands exceeded the grade determined by job 
evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case.

Table 2.4.3 - Employees with salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation by occupation for the 
period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Occupation Number of employees Job evaluation level Remuneration level Reason for deviation

N/A 0 0 0 None

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job evaluation None

Percentage of total employed None

The following table summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability.

Table 2.4.4 - Profile of employees who have salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation for the 
period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Gender African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with a disability 0

Notes
•	 If there were no cases where the salary levels were higher than those determined by job evaluation, keep the heading and 

replace the table with the following:

Total number of Employees whose salaries exceeded the grades determine by job evaluation 0
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2.5	 Employment Changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover rates provide an indication of 
trends in the employment profile of the department. The following tables provide a summary of turnover rates by salary band 
and critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Table 2.5.1 Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Salary band
Number of employees 

at beginning of 
period-1 April 2022

Appointments and 
transfers into the 

department

Terminations and 
transfers out of the 

department

Turnover 
rate

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 6 0 0 0%

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 20 1 0 0%

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 33 4 2 6.06%

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 55 6 4 7.27%

Senior Management Service Bands A (L13) 23 1 3 13.04%

Senior Management Service Bands B (L14) 6 0 0 0%

Senior Management Service Bands C (L15) 0 0 0 0%

Senior Management Service Bands D (L16) 0 0 0 0%

Total 143 12 9 6.29%

Table 2.5.2 - Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Critical occupation
Number of employees 

at beginning of 
period-April 2022

Appointments and 
transfers into the 

department

Terminations and 
transfers out of the 

department

Turnover 
rate

Senior Management Service Bands A (L13) 23 1 3 13.04%

Senior Management Service Bands B (L14) 6 0 0 0%

Senior Management Service Bands C (L15) 0 0 0 0%

Senior Management Service Bands D (L16) 0 0 0 0%

Total 29 1 3 10.34%

The table below identifies the major reasons why staff left the Department. 

Table 2.5.3 - Reasons why staff left the department for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Termination Type Number % of Total Resignations

Death 0 0%

Resignation 5 33.33%

Expiry of contract 6 40.00%

Dismissal – operational changes 0 0%

Dismissal – misconduct 0 0%

Dismissal – inefficiency 0 0%

Discharged due to ill-health 0 0%

Retirement 1 6.67%

Transfer to other Public Service Departments 3 20.00%

Other 0 0%

Total 15 100%

Total number of employees who left as a % of total employment 10.27%
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Table 2.5.4 - Promotions by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Occupation
Employees 
1 April 2022

Promotions 
to another 
salary level

Salary level 
promotions as a 
% of employees 
by occupation

Progressions to 
another notch 
within a salary 

level

Notch 
progression as a 
% of employees 
by occupation

Senior Management Service Bands A (L13) 23 0 0% 17 73.91%

Senior Management Service Bands B (L14) 6 0 0% 6 100%

Senior Management Service Bands C (L15) 0 0 0% 0 0%

Senior Management Service Bands D (L16) 0 0 0% 0 0%

Total 29 0 0% 23 79.31%

Table 2.5.5 Promotions by salary band for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Salary Band
Employees 
1 April 2022

Promotions 
to another 
salary level

Salary bands 
promotions as a 
% of employees 
by salary level

Progressions to 
another notch 
within a salary 

level

Notch 
progression as a 
% of employees 
by salary bands

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 6 0 0% 6 100%

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 20 0 0% 14 70.00%

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 33 2 6.06% 18 54.55%

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 55 2 3,64% 24 43.64%

Senior Management (Levels 13-16) 29 0 0% 14 48.28%

Total 143 4 2.80% 76 53.15%

2.6	 Employment Equity 

Table 2.6.1 - Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational 
categories as on 31 March 2023

Occupational category
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior officials 
and managers (SL 13 to 16) 10 0 0 1 13 1 1 1 27

Professionals (SL 9-12) 26 0 0 1 30 1 0 0 58

Technicians and associate 
professionals (SL 6-8) 14 0 0 0 21 0 0 1 36

Clerks (SL 3-5) 12 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 19

Service and sales workers 
(SL 1-2) 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 6

Skilled agriculture and fishery 
workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades 
workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators 
and assemblers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 63 0 0 2 76 2 1 2 146

Employees with disabilities 2 1 3
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Table 2.6.2 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational 
bands as on 31 March 2023

Occupational band
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management (SL 15-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management (SL 
13-14) 10 0 0 1 13 1 1 1 27

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management (SL 9-12) 26 0 0 1 30 1 0 0 58

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents (SL 6-8) 14 0 0 0 21 0 0 1 36

Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making (SL 3-5) 12 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 19

Unskilled and defined 
decision making (SL 1-2) 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 6

Total 63 0 0 2 76 2 1 2 146

Table 2.6.3 Recruitment for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023

Occupational band
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management (SL 15-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management (SL 
13-14) 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management (SL 9-12) 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 6

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents (SL 6-8) 1 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 4

Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making (SL 3-5) 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Unskilled and defined 
decision making (SL 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 5 0 0 0 4 3 0 0 12

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Table 2.6.4 - Promotions for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023

Occupational band
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management ( SL 15-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management (SL13-
14) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management (SL 9-12) 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents (SL 6-8) 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making (SL 3-5) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled and defined 
decision making (SL 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 2.6.5 - Terminations for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023

Occupational band
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management ( SL 15-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management (SL 
13-14) 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management (SL 9-12) 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 4

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents (SL 6-8) 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making (SL 3-5) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled and defined 
decision making (SL 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 7 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 9

Employees with Disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 2.6.6 - Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023

Disciplinary action
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

The official resigned before 
the conclusion of the 
disciplinary hearing N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Written warning N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Total
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Table 2.6.7 Skills development for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023

Occupational category
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior officials 
and managers 4 0 0 0 5 0 1 0 10

Professionals 5 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 14

Technicians and associate 
professionals 8 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 19

Clerks 6 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 14

Service and sales workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture and fishery 
workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades 
workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators 
and assemblers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Total 23 0 0 0 34 0 1 0 58

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2.7	 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members

All members of the SMS must conclude and sign performance agreements within specific timeframes. Information regarding 
the signing of performance agreements by SMS members, the reasons for not complying within the prescribed timeframes 
and disciplinary steps taken is presented here.

Table 2.7.1 - Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2022

SMS Level
Total number 

of funded 
SMS posts

Total number 
of  SMS 

members

Total number of  
signed performance 

agreements

Signed performance agreements as 
% of total number of SMS members

Director-General/ Head of Department 0 0 0 N/A

Salary Level 16 1 0 0 N/A

Salary Level 15 0 0 0 N/A

Salary Level 14 6 6 6 100%

Salary Level 13 24 24 24 100%

Total 31 30 30 97.00%

Notes
•	 In the event of a National or Provincial election occurring within the first three months of a financial year all members of the 

SMS must conclude and sign their performance agreements for that financial year within three months following the month 
in which the elections took place. For example, if elections took place in April, the reporting date in the heading of the table 
above should change to 31 July 2022.

Table 2.7.2 Reasons for not having concluded Performance agreements for all SMS members as on 31 March 2023

Reasons 

The post for Head of Department is vacant (Salary level 16).
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Notes
•	 The reporting date in the heading of this table should be aligned with that of Table 2.7.1.

Table 2.7.3 - Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded performance agreements as 
on 31 March 2023

Reasons 

None

2.8	 Performance Rewards

To encourage good performance, the Department has granted the following performance rewards during the year under 
review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, disability, salary bands and critical occupations (see definition 
in notes below).

Table 2.8.1 - Performance rewards by race, gender and disability for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Race and Gender

Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
group

Cost (R’000)
Average cost per 

employee

African 2 139 1.44% R76 120 R38 060

Male 2 63 3.17% R76 120 R38 060

Female 0 76 0% 0

Asian 0 1 0% 0

Male 0 0 0% 0

Female 0 1 0% 0

Coloured 0 2 0% 0

Male 0 0 0% 0

Female 0 2 0% 0

White 1 4 25% R39 193 R39 193

Male 1 2 50% R39 193 R39 193

Female 0 2 0% 0

Total 3 146 R115 313 R115 313

Table 2.8.2 - Performance rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management Service for the period 1 
April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Salary band

Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within salary 

bands

Total Cost 
(R’000)

Average cost 
per employee

Total cost as a 
% of the total 

personnel 
expenditure

Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 6 0% 0 0 0%

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 0 21 0% 0 0 0%

Highly skilled production (Levels 
6-8) 0 37 0% 0 0 0%

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 0 61 0% 0 0 0%

Total 0 125 0% 0 0 0%
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Table 2.8.3 - Performance rewards by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Critical occupation

Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
occupation

Total Cost (R’000)
Average cost per 

employee

Senior Management level 13 3 25 12.00% R115 313 R38 437

Senior Management level 14 0 6 0% 0 0

Senior Management level 15 0 1 0% 0 0

Total 3 32 9.00% R115 313 R38 437

Table 2.8.4 - Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band for Senior Management Service for the 
period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Salary band

Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within salary 

bands

Total Cost 
(R’000)

Average cost 
per employee

Total cost as a % of 
the total personnel 

expenditure

Band A 0 0 0 0 0 0

Band B 0 0 0 0 0 0

Band C 0 0 0 0 0 0

Band D 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

2.9	 Foreign Workers

The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the department in terms of salary band and major 
occupation. 

Table 2.9.1 Foreign workers by salary band for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Salary band
01 April 2022 31 March 2023 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change

Lower skilled 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Highly skilled production (Level 6-8) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Highly skilled supervision (Level 9-12) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Contract (Level 9-12) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Contract (Level 13-16) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Total 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Table 2.9.2 - Foreign workers by major occupation for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Major occupation
01 April 2022 31 March 2023 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change

Salary Level 16 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Salary Level 15 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Salary Level 14 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Salary Level 13 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Total 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
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2.10	 Leave Utilisation 

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public service. The following 
tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave and disability leave. In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also 
provided.

Table 2.10.1 - Sick leave for the period 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022

Salary band
Total 
days

% Days with 
medical 

certification

Number of 
employees 

using sick leave

% of total 
employees 

using sick leave

Average 
days per 
employee

Estimated 
Cost 

(R’000)

Lower Skills (levels 1-2) 25.00 68.00% 3.00 2.10% 8.00 14.00

Skilled (levels 3-5) 119.00 79.80% 18.00 12.40% 7.00 109.00

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 279.00 83.20% 29.00 20.00% 10.00 432.00

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9 -12) 488.00 88.50% 51.00 35.20% 10.00 1512.00

Senior and top management (levels 13-16) 199.00 82.90% 25.00 17.20 8.00 905.00

Total 1.110 126.00 43.00 2 972.00

Table 2.10.2 - Disability leave (temporary and permanent) for the period 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022

Salary band
Total 
days

% Days with 
medical 

certification

Number of 
employees using 
disability leave

% of total 
employees using 
disability leave

Average 
days per 
employee

Estimated 
Cost 

(R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 136.00 100% 1.00 100.00% 136.00 255.00

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 0 0 0 0% 0 0

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0

Total 136.00 100% 1.00 100.00% 136.00 255.00

The table below summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in the PSCBC 
in 2000 requires management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the time of termination 
of service.

Table 2.10.3 - Annual Leave for the period 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022

Salary band
Total days 

taken
Number of employees using 

annual leave
Average per 

employee

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 122.00 20.00 6.00

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 476.00 22.00 22.00

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 733.00 22.00 33.00

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 1429.00 23.00 62.00

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 774.00 25.00 31.00

Total 3 534.00 112.00 154.00
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Table 2.10.4 - Capped leave for the period 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022

Salary band
Total days of capped 

leave taken
Number of Employees 

using capped leave

Average number 
of days taken per 

employee

Average capped leave 
per employee as on 31 

March 2023

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 0 0 0 1.00

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 0 0 0 85.00

Senior management (Levels 
13-16) 0 0 0 1.00

Total 0 0 0 87.00

The following table summarise payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.

Table 2.10.5 - Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Reason
Total amount 

(R’000)
Number of 
employees

Average per 
employee (R’000)

Leave payout for 2022/23 due to non-utilisation of leave for the previous cycle 0 0 0

Capped leave payouts on termination of service for 2021/23 10.00 1.00 10.00

Current leave payout on termination of service for 2022/23 396.00 16.00 32.00

Total 406.00 17.00 42.00

2.11	 HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion Programmes

Table 2.11.1 - Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk of 
contracting HIV & related diseases (if any) 

Key steps taken to reduce the risk 

N/A
Distribution of condoms 
HIV/AIDS Screening

Table 2.11.2 - Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes

Question Yes No Details, if yes

Has the department designated a member of 
the SMS to implement the provisions contained 
in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service 
Regulations, 2001? If so, provide her/his name
and position.

X

Mr Seluka (Acting Director HRD & ER)

Does the department have a dedicated unit 
or has it designated specific staff members 
to promote the health and well-being of your 
employees? If so, indicate the number of
employees who are involved in this task and the
annual budget that is available for this purpose.

X

Three employees and the annual estimated budget is R150 000.

Has the department introduced an Employee 
Assistance or Health Promotion Programme for 
your employees? If so, indicate the key elements/
services of this Programme.

X

Counselling
HIV/AIDS Programmes
Wellness interventions
Occupational Health and Safety
Health and productivity
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Question Yes No Details, if yes

Has the department established (a) committee(s) 
as contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 
of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, 
please provide the names of the members of 
the committee and the stakeholder(s) that they 
represent.  

X

Mr S Seluka (Director ICT and Auxiliary services
Mr M Makaota (Admin Officer Auxiliary Services)
Ms R Maota (Assistant Director Employee Health and Wellness)
Mr R Van Huyssteen (Labour Representative)
Ms M Shadung (Deputy Director Risk Management)
Mr J Mohlala (Security Officer)
Mr S Tlhako (Security Officer)
Ms C Buthelezi (Assistant Director Knowledge Management)

Has the department reviewed its employment 
policies and practices to ensure that these do 
not unfairly discriminate against employees 
on the basis of their HIV status? If so, list the 
employment policies/practices so reviewed.  

X

The department has policies that ensure that there is no unfair 
discrimination of employees that test/ report to be HIV/AIDS 
positive in place.

Has the department introduced measures 
to protect HIV-positive employees or those 
perceived to be HIV-positive from discrimination? 
If so, list the key elements of these measures. 

X

No employees have reported to be HIV-positive.

Does the department encourage its employees 
to undergo Voluntary Counselling and Testing? If 
so, list the results that you have you achieved. 

X
During the period under review, five (5) employees underwent 
HIV/AIDS testing. This constitutes two (2) males and (3) 
females.

Has the department developed measures/
indicators to monitor & evaluate the impact of its 
health promotion programme? If so, list these 
measures/indicators.

X

2.12	 Labour Relations

Table 2.12.1 - Collective agreements for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Subject matter Date

Agreement on the arrangement on working time for the security 
officers.

02 November 2022

Notes
•	 If there were no agreements, keep the heading and replace the table with the following:

Total number of Collective agreements 1
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The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the department for the year under 
review.

Table 2.12.2 - Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total

Correctional counselling N/A N/A

Verbal warning N/A N/A

Written warning N/A N/A

Final written warning N/A N/A

Suspended without pay N/A N/A

Fine N/A N/A

Demotion N/A N/A

Dismissal N/A N/A

Not guilty N/A N/A

Case withdrawn N/A N/A

Total N/A N/A

Notes
•	 If there were no agreements, keep the heading and replace the table with the following:

Total number of Disciplinary hearings finalised None

Table 2.12.3 -Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Type of misconduct Number % of total

N/A N/A

Total N/A N/A

Table 2.12.4 - Grievances logged for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Grievances Number % of Total

Number of grievances resolved 3 50%

Number of grievances not resolved 3 50%

Total number of grievances lodged 6 100%

Table 2.12.5 - Disputes logged with Councils for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2022

Disputes Number % of Total

Number of disputes upheld 2 50%

Number of disputes dismissed 2 50%

Total number of disputes lodged 4 100%
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Table 2.12.6 - Strike actions for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023
	
Total number of persons working days lost N/A

Total costs working days lost N/A

Amount recovered as a result of no work no pay (R’000) N/A

Table 2.12.7 - Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2023

Number of people suspended N/A

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days N/A

Average number of days suspended N/A

Cost of suspension (R’000) N/A

2.13	 Skills Development

This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development. 

Table 2.13.1 - Training needs identified for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 

Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as at 
1 April 2022

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships
Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other forms 
of training

Total

Legislators, senior officials 
and managers Female 14 0 2 3 5

Male 15 0 3 3 6

Professionals Female 31 0 3 2 5

Male 24 0 3 2 5

Technicians and associate 
professionals Female 18 0 6 0 6

Male 15 0 6 0 6

Clerks Female 7 0 5 0 5

Male 13 0 3 0 3

Service and sales workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture and fishery 
workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades 
workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators 
and assemblers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations Female 5 0 1 0 0

Male 1 0 0 0 0

Sub Total Female 75 0 0 0 0

Male 68 0 0 0 0

Total 143 0 32 10 41
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Table 2.13.2 Training provided for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as at 
1 April 2022

Training provided within the reporting period

Learnerships
Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other forms 
of training

Total

Legislators, senior officials and 
managers Female 14 0 6 2 8

Male 15 0 4 1 5

Professionals Female 31 0 9 0 9

Male 24 0 5 2 7

Technicians and associate 
professionals Female 18 0 11 0 11

Male 15 0 8 0 8

Clerks Female 7 0 6 0 6

Male 13 0 3 0 3

Service and sales workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture and fishery 
workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades 
workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators 
and assemblers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations Female 5 0 1 0 1

Male 1 0 0 0 0

Sub Total Female 75 0 33 2 35

Male 68 0 20 3 23

Total 143 0 53 5 58

2.14	 Injury on Duty

The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table 2.14.1 Injury on duty for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2023

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total

Required basic medical attention only 1 100%

Temporary Total Disablement 0 0

Permanent Disablement 0 0

Fatal 0 0

Total 1 0
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2.15	 Utilisation of Consultants

The following tables relates to information on the utilisation of consultants in the department. In terms of the Public Service 
Regulations “consultant’ means a natural or juristic person or a partnership who or which provides in terms of a specific 
contract on an ad hoc basis any of the following professional services to a department against remuneration received from 
any source:

a.	 The rendering of expert advice;
b.	 The drafting of proposals for the execution of specific tasks; and
c.	 The execution of a specific task which is of a technical or intellectual nature, but excludes an employee of a department.

Table 2.15.1 - Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 
2023

Project title
Total number of 
consultants that 

worked on project

Duration
(work days)

Contract value in 
Rand

Facilitation of Strategic Plan for Strategic Management N/A N/A N/A

Mediation & Grievance Services for Human Resource Development N/A N/A N/A

Recruitment Agency Services for Human Resource Management N/A N/A N/A

Quality Assurance Review Services for Internal Audit N/A N/A N/A

B-BBEE Verification for Ethics and Governance N/A N/A N/A

Total number of projects Total individual consultants Total duration work days Total contract value in Rand

N/A N/A N/A N/A

Table 2.15.2 - Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of Historically Disadvantaged 
Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Project title
Percentage ownership by HDI 

groups
Percentage management by 

HDI groups

Number of consultants from 
HDI groups that work on the 

project

Facilitation of Strategic Plan 
(Nantso Holdings)

N/A N/A N/A

Mediation & Grievance Services 
(Extribyte)

N/A N/A N/A

Recruitment Agency Services (IT 
Empowerment Consulting)

N/A N/A N/A

Quality Assurance Review 
Services (Prozilog Pty Ltd)

N/A N/A N/A

B-BBEE Verification (Moloto BEE 
Verifications CC)

N/A N/A N/A

Table 2.15.3 - Report on consultant appointments using donor funds for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Project title
Total number of consultants 

that worked on project
Duration (work days)

Donor and contract value in 
Rand

N/A N/A N/A N/A

Total number of projects Total individual consultants Total duration (work days) Total contract value in Rand

N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Table 2.15.4 - Analysis of consultant appointments using donor funds, in terms of Historically Disadvantaged 
Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Project title
Percentage ownership by HDI 

groups
Percentage management by 

HDI groups

Number of consultants from 
HDI groups that work on the 

project

N/A N/A N/A N/A

2.16	 Severance Packages

The entity provided no severance packages to employees during the year under review, as indicated in the table below.

Table 2.16.1 - Granting of employee initiated severance packages for the period 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

Salary band
Number of applications 

received
Number of applications 

referred to the MPSA
Number of applications 

supported by MPSA
Number of packages 

approved by department

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 0 0 0 0

Senior management 
(Levels 13-16) 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0
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PART E:
PFMA COMPLIANCE 

REPORT



1.	 IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL, UNAUTHORISED 
EXPENDITURE AND MATERIAL LOSSES  

1.1.	 Irregular Expenditure 

a)	 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Description
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 27 517 39 305

Add: Irregular expenditure confirmed 1 129 -

Less: Irregular expenditure condoned - -

Less: Irregular expenditure not condoned and removed - (11 788)

Less: Irregular expenditure recoverable - -

Less: Irregular expenditure not recovered and written off - -

Closing balance 28 646 27 517

Reconciling notes

Description
2022/2023 2021/2022 1

R’000 R’000

Irregular expenditure that was under assessment in 2021/22 1 124 1 362

Irregular expenditure that relates to 2021/22 and identified in 2022/23 5 -

Irregular expenditure for the current year - -

Total 1 129 1 362

Of the amount of R1,362 million an amount of R238 000 was found not to be irregular. A further amount of R5 000 was discovered and 
reported in 2022/23 but relates to 2021/22.  

b)	 Details of current and previous year irregular expenditure (under assessment, determination, and 
investigation)

Description 2
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Irregular expenditure under assessment - 1 362

Irregular expenditure under determination - -

Irregular expenditure under investigation - -

Total 3 - 1 362

Not applicable.

1	  Record amounts in the year in which it was incurred
2	  Group similar items
3	  Total unconfirmed irregular expenditure (assessment), losses (determination), and criminal conduct (investigation)
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c)	 Details of current and previous year irregular expenditure condoned

Description
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Irregular expenditure condoned - -

Total - -

Not applicable.

d)	 Details of current and previous year irregular expenditure removed - (not condoned)

Description
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Irregular expenditure NOT condoned and removed - 11 788

Total - 11 788

Removal of irregular expenditure (not condoned) approved by the Accounting Officer. 

e)	 Details of current and previous year irregular expenditure recovered

Description
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Irregular expenditure recovered - -

Total - -

Not applicable.

f)	 Details of current and previous year irregular expenditure written off (irrecoverable)

Description
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Irregular expenditure written off - -

Total - -

Not applicable.

Additional disclosure relating to Inter-Institutional Arrangements

g)	 Details of non-compliance cases where an institution is involved in an inter-institutional arrangement (where 
such institution is not responsible for the non-compliance)

Description

An amount of R1 089 000 (included in the R1 129 000) under 1.1 (a)  for the Office of the DPCI Judge was referred to Office of the Chief 
Justice and Judicial Service Commission for further investigation.

Total 
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h)	 Details of non-compliance cases where an institution is involved in an inter-institutional arrangement (where 
such institution is responsible for the non-compliance)

Description
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

- -

Total - -

Not applicable.

i)	 Details of current and previous year disciplinary or criminal steps taken as a result of irregular expenditure

Disciplinary steps taken

It was recommended that the member responsible for the irregular expenditure of R40 000 should attend compulsory training on SCM 
compliance and SCM procurement processes.

1.2.	 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

a)	 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Description
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 32 32

Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure confirmed - 2

Less: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure written off -

Less: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure recoverable - (2)

Closing balance 32 32

Department still in process of recovery or written off due to challenges with getting hold of former official.

Reconciling notes

Description
2022/2023 2021/2022 4

R’000 R’000

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure that was under assessment in 2021/22 - -

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure that relates to 2021/22 and identified in 2022/23 - -

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure for the current year - 2

Total - 2

4	  Record amounts in the year in which it was incurred
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b)	 Details of current and previous year fruitless and wasteful expenditure (under assessment, determination, 
and investigation)

Description 5
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure under assessment - -

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure under determination - -

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure under investigation - 2

Total6 - 2

Amount recovered in 2021/22.

c)	 Details of current and previous year fruitless and wasteful expenditure recovered

Description
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure recovered - 2

Total - 2

Amount recovered in 2021/22.

d)	 Details of current and previous year fruitless and wasteful expenditure not recovered and written off

Description
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure written off - -

Total - -

Not applicable.

e)	 Details of current and previous year disciplinary or criminal steps taken as a result of fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure

Disciplinary steps taken

Total 

Not applicable.

5	  Group similar items
6	  Total unconfirmed fruitless and wasteful expenditure (assessment), losses (determination), and criminal conduct (investigation)
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1.3.	 Unauthorised Expenditure 

a)	 Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure

Description
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 5 696 5 696

Add: unauthorised expenditure confirmed - -

Less: unauthorised expenditure approved with funding - -

Less: unauthorised expenditure approved without funding - -

Less: unauthorised expenditure recoverable - -

Less: unauthorised not recovered and written off 7 - -

Closing balance 5 696 5 696

Still awaiting decision by SCOPA and/or National Treasury

Reconciling notes

Description
2022/2023 2021/2022 8

R’000 R’000

Unauthorised expenditure that was under assessment in 2022/23 - -

Unauthorised expenditure that relates to 2021/22 and identified in 2022/23 - -

Unauthorised expenditure for the current year - -

Total - -

b)	 Details of current and previous year unauthorised expenditure (under assessment, determination, and 
investigation)

Description 9
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Unauthorised expenditure under assessment - -

Unauthorised expenditure under determination - -

Unauthorised expenditure under investigation - -

Total 10 - -

Not applicable

7	  This amount may only be written off against available savings
8	  Record amounts in the year in which it was incurred
9	  Group similar items
10	 Total unconfirmed unauthorised expenditure (assessment), losses (determination), and criminal conduct (investigation)
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1.4.	 Additional Disclosure Relating to Material Losses in Terms of PFMA Section 40(3)
(b)(i) &(iii))

a)	 Details of current and previous year material losses through criminal conduct 

Material losses through criminal conduct
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Theft - -

Other material losses - -

Less: Recovered - -

Less: Not recovered and written off - -

Total - -

Not applicable

b)	 Details of other material losses

Nature of other material losses
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

- -

- -

Total - -

Not applicable 

c)	 Other material losses recovered

Nature of losses
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

- -

- -

Total - -

Not applicable

d)	 Other material losses written off

Nature of losses
2022/2023 2021/2022

R’000 R’000

Damages to Hired Vehicles Expenditure where there were no liability by official/s 3 15

- -

Total 3 15
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2.	 LATE AND/OR NON-PAYMENT OF SUPPLIERS

Description
Number of invoices Consolidated Value

R’000

Valid invoices received 6 676 37 743

Invoices paid within 30 days or agreed period 6 618 37 453

Invoices paid after 30 days or agreed period 58 290

Invoices older than 30 days or agreed period (unpaid and without dispute) - -

Invoices older than 30 days or agreed period (unpaid and in dispute) - -

The late payment was mainly due to unavailability of transversal systems after the department moved into its new office accommodation. 

3.	 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

3.1.	 Procurement by other means

Project description Name of supplier
Type of procurement by 

other means
Contract number

Value of contract
R’000

-

-

Total -

3.2.	 Contract variations and expansions

Project description
Name of 
supplier

Contract 
modification type 

(Expansion or 
Variation)

Contract 
number

Original 
contract 

value

Value of previous contract 
expansion/s or variation/s 

(if applicable)

Value of current 
contract expansion 

or variation

R’000 R’000 R’000

- - -

Total - - -
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PART F:
FINANCIAL

INFORMATION



1.	 REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on Vote No. 21: Department of Civilian 
Secretariat for Police Service 

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
1.	 I have audited the financial statements of the Department of Civilian Secretariat for Police Service set out on pages 91 

to 146, which comprise the appropriation statement, statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, statement of 
financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

2.	 In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Department of 
Civilian Secretariat for Police Service as at 31 March 2023 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with Modified Cash Standard (MCS) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act 
of South Africa 1 of 1999 (PFMA). 

Basis for opinion
3.	 I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).  My responsibilities under those 

standards are further described in the responsibilities of the auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements 
section of my report. 

4.	 I am independent of the in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International 
code of ethics for professional accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as 
other ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code. 

5.	 I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Other matters
6.	 I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Unaudited supplementary schedules

7.	 The supplementary information set out on pages 147 to 155 does not form part of the financial statements and is 
presented as additional information.  I have not audited these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion 
on them.

Unauthorised, irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure (UIFW 
expenditure) 

8.	 On 23 December 2022 National Treasury issued Instruction Note No. 4: PFMA Compliance and Reporting Framework of 
2022-23 in terms of section 76(1)(b), (e) and (f), 2(e) and (4)(a) and (c) of the PFMA, which came into effect on 3 January 
2023.  The PFMA Compliance and Reporting Framework also addresses the disclosure of unauthorised expenditure, 
irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure. Among the effects of this framework is that irregular and 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred in previous financial years and not addressed is no longer disclosed in the 
disclosure notes of the annual financial statements, only the current year and prior year figures are disclosed in note 23 
to the financial statements.  The movements in respect of irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure are 
no longer disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements of the department.  The disclosure of these movements 
(e.g. condoned, recoverable, removed, written off, under assessment, under determination and under investigation) are 
now required to be included as part of other information in the annual report of the auditees.
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9.	 I do not express an opinion on the disclosure of irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure in the annual 
report. 

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements
10.	 The accounting officer  is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the  financial statements in accordance 

with the MCS and the requirements of the PFMA and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

11.	 In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the department’s ability to 
continue as a going concern; disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern; and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the department or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Responsibilities of the auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements 
12.	 My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

13.	 A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to this 
auditor’s report.

Report on the Annual Performance Report

14.	 In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I must audit 
and report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information against predetermined objectives 
for the selected material performance indicators presented in the annual performance report.  The accounting officer is 
responsible for the preparation of the annual performance report.

15.	 I selected the following material performance indicators related to programmes presented in the annual performance 
report for the year ended 31 March 2023.  I selected those indicators that measure the department’s performance on its 
primary mandated functions and that are of significant national, community or public interest.

Programme Page numbers Purpose

Programme two: Inter-Sectoral Coordination and Strategic 
Partnerships

28-31 To manage and encourage national dialogue on 
community safety and crime prevention

Programme three: Legislation and Policy Development 32-33 Develop policy and legislation for the police sector 
and conduct research on policing and crime

Programme four: Civilian Oversight, Monitoring and Evaluation 34-36 Oversee, monitor and report on the performance 
of the South African Police Service
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16.	 I evaluated the reported performance information for the selected material performance indicators against the criteria 
developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice.  When an 
annual performance report is prepared using these criteria, it provides useful and reliable information and insights to 
users on the department’s planning and delivery on its mandate and objectives. 

17.	 I performed procedures to test whether: 
•	 the indicators used for planning and reporting on performance can be linked directly to the department’s mandate 

and the achievement of its planned objectives
•	 the indicators are well defined and verifiable to ensure that they are easy to understand and apply consistently and 

that I can confirm the methods and processes to be used for measuring achievements
•	 the targets linked directly to the achievement of the indicators and are specific, time bound and measurable to ensure 

that it is easy to understand what should be delivered and by when, the required level of performance as well as how 
performance will be evaluated

•	 the indicators and targets reported on in the annual performance report are the same as what was committed to in 
the approved initial or revised planning documents

•	 the reported performance information is presented in the annual performance report in the prescribed manner
•	 there is adequate supporting evidence for the achievements reported and for the reasons provided for any over- or 

underachievement of targets.

18.	 I performed the procedures for the purpose of reporting material findings only.
19.	 I did not identify any material findings on the reported performance information for the selected material performance 

indicators.

Other matter
20.	 I draw attention to the matter below. 

Achievement of planned targets

21.	 The annual performance report includes information on reported achievements against planned targets and provides 
explanations for over- and under-achievements. 

Report on compliance with legislation

22.	 In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I must audit and report on compliance with 
applicable legislation relating to financial matters, financial management and other related matters.  The accounting 
officer is responsible for the department’s compliance with legislation.

23.	 I performed procedures to test compliance with selected requirements in key legislation in accordance with the findings 
engagement methodology of the Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA).  This engagement is not an assurance 
engagement. Accordingly, I do not express an assurance opinion or conclusion.

24.	 Through an established AGSA process, I selected requirements in key legislation for compliance testing that are relevant 
to the financial and performance management of the Department of Civilian Secretariat for Police Service, clear to 
allow consistent measurement and evaluation, while also sufficiently detailed and readily available to report in an 
understandable manner.  The selected legislative requirements are included in the annexure to this auditor’s report. 

25.	 I did not identify any material non-compliance with the selected legislative requirements. 
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Other information in the annual report

26.	 The Department of Civilian Secretariat for Police Service is responsible for the other information included in the annual 
report, which includes the general information, governance, the audit committee’s report and the accounting officer’s 
report. The other information referred to does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and those selected 
material indicators in the scoped-in programmes presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically 
reported on in this auditor’s report. 

27.	 My opinion on the financial statements, the report on the audit of the annual performance report and the report on 
compliance with legislation do not cover the other information included in the annual report and I do not express an audit 
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion on it.

28.	 My responsibility is to read this other information and, in doing so, consider whether it is materially inconsistent with 
the  financial statements and the selected material indicators in the scoped-in programmes presented in the annual 
performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

29.	 The other information I obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report are Part D: Human Resource Management 
Report and Part E: PFMA Compliance Report, and Part A: General information and Part C: Governance are expected to 
be made available to us after 31 July 2023.

30.	 If, based on the work I have performed on the other information that I obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, I 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard. 

31.	 When I do receive and read the Part A: General information and Part C: Governance, if I conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, I am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the 
other information be corrected.  If the other information is not corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s report and 
re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected, this will not be necessary. 

Internal control deficiencies

32.	 I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and compliance 
with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. 

33.	 I did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control.

Pretoria
27 July 2023
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

The annexure includes the following:
•	 the auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit 
•	 the selected legislative requirements for compliance testing.

Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

Professional judgement and professional scepticism

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout my audit of the financial statements and the procedures performed on reported performance information for 
selected material performance indicators and on the department’s compliance with selected requirements in key legislation.

Financial statements

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the  financial statements as described in this auditor’s report, I also: 
•	 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  financial statements, whether due to fraud or error; design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override 
of internal control

•	 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the department’s internal 
control

•	 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made.

•	 conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements.  I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the department to continue as a going concern.  If I 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on 
the financial statements.  My conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor’s report.  
However, future events or conditions may cause a  to cease operating as a going concern.

•	 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

•	 obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within 
the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.  I am responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the group audit.  I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion. 

Communication with those charged with governance

I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

I also provide the accounting officer other with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
my independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied. 
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Compliance with legislation – selected legislative requirements
The selected legislative requirements are as follows: 

Legislation Sections or regulations

Public Finance Management Act No.1 
of 1999 (PFMA) 

Section 1
Section 38(1)(a)(iv); 38(1)(b); PFMA 38(1)(c); 38(1)(c)(ii); 38(1)(d); 38(1)(h)(iii)
Section 39(1)(a); 39(2)(a)
Section 40(1)(a); 40(1)(b); 40(1)(c)(i) 
Section 43(4); 44; 44 (1) and (2); 45(b)
Section 50(3); 50(3)(a)

Treasury Regulations for departments, 
trading entities, constitutional 
institutions and public entities (TR)

Treasury Regulation 4.1.1; 4.1.3
Treasury Regulation 5.1.1; 5.2.1; 5.2.3(a); 5.2.3(d); 5.3.1 
Treasury Regulation 6.3.1(a); 6.3.1(b); 6.3.1(c’); 6.3.1(d); 6.4.1(b)
Treasury Regulation 8.1.1; 8.2.1; 8.2.2; 8.2.3; 8.4.1
Treasury Regulation 9.1.1; 9.1.4
Treasury Regulation 10.1.1(a); 10.1.2
Treasury Regulation 12.5.1
Treasury Regulation 15.10.1.2(c)
Treasury Regulation 16A3.1; 16A 3.2; 16A 3.2(a); 16A 6.1; 16A6.2(a), (b) & (e); 16A 6.3(a); 16A 
6.3(a)(i); 16A 6.3(b); 16A 6.3(c); 16A6.3(d); 16A 6.3(e); 16A 6.4; 16A 6.5; 16A 6.6; 16A7.1; 16A.7.3; 
16A.7.6; 16A.7.7; TR 16A8.2 (1) and (2); 16A 8.3 16A8.3 (d); 16A 8.4; 16A 9; 16A 9.1; 16A9.1(b)(ii); 
16A9.1 (c); 16A 9.1(d); 16A 9.1(e); 116A9.2; 16A9.2(a)(ii) &(iii); 16A9.1(f).

Public service regulation Public service regulation 13(c ); 18; 18(1) and (2); 25(1)(e)(i); 25(1)(e)(iii)

Prevention and Combating of 
Corrupt Activities Act No.12 of 2004 
(PRECCA)

Section 29
Section 34(1)

Construction Industry Development 
Board Act No.38 of 2000 (CIDB)

Section 18(1)

Construction Industry Development 
Board Regulations

CIDB regulation 17; 25(1); 25(5); 25(7A)

PPPFA Section 1(i); 2.1(a); 2.1(b); 2.1(f)

PPR 2017 Paragraph 4.1; 4.2
Paragraph 5.1; 5.3; 5.6; 5.7
Paragraph 6.1; 6.2; 6.3; 6.5; 6.6; 6.8
Paragraph 7.1; 7.2; 7.3; 7.5; 7.6; 7.8
Paragraph 8.2; 8.5
Paragraph 9.1; 9.2
Paragraph 10.1; 10.2
Paragraph 11.1; 11.2
Paragraph 12.1; 12.2

PPR 2022 Paragraph 3.1
Paragraph 4.1; 4.2; 4.3; 4.4
Paragraph 5.1; 5.2; 5.3; 5.4

SITA ACT Section 7(3)
Section 7(6)(b)
Section 20(1)(a)(I)

SITA regulations Regulation 8.1.1 (b); 8.1.4; 8.1.7
Regulation 9.6; 9.4
Regulation 12.3
Regulation 13.1(a)
Regulation 14.1; 14.2

PFMA SCM Instruction No. 09 of 
2022/2023

Paragraph 3.1; 3.3(b); 3.3(c ); 3.3(e ); 3.6

National Treasury Instruction No.1 of 
2015/16

Paragraph 3.1; 4.1; 4.2
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Legislation Sections or regulations

NT SCM Instruction Note 03 2021/22 Paragraph 4.1; 4.2 (b); 4.3; 4.4; 4.4(a); 4.4(c) (d); 4.6
Paragraph 5.4
Paragraph 7.2; 7.6

NT SCM Instruction 4A of 2016/17 Paragraph 6

NT SCM Instruction Note 03 2019/20 Paragraph 5.5.1(vi); 5.5.1(x)

NT SCM Instruction Note 11 2020/21 Paragraph 3.1; 3.4 (a) and (b); 3.9; 6.1; 6.2; 6.7

NT SCM Instruction Note 2 of 2021/22 Paragraph 3.2.1; 3.2.2; 3.2.4(a) and (b); 3.3.1; 3.2.2
Paragraph 4.1

PFMA SCM Instruction 04 of 2022/23 Paragraph 4(1); 4(2); 4(4)

Practice Note 5 of 2009/10 Paragraph 3.3

PFMA SCM Instruction 08 of 2022/23 Paragraph 3.2
Paragraph 4.3.2 and 4.3.3

Competition Act Section 4(1)(b)(ii)

NT Instruction note 4 of 2015/16 Paragraph 3.4

NT Instruction 3 of 2019/20 - Annexure 
A 

Section 5.5.1 (iv) and (x)

Second Amendment of NTI 05 of 
2020/21

Paragraph 4.8; 4.9; 5.1; 5.3

Erratum NTI 5 of 202/21 Paragraph 1

Erratum NTI 5 of 202/21 Paragraph 2

Practice Note 7 of 2009/10 Paragraph 4.1.2

Practice Note 11 of 2008/9 Paragraph 3.13.1 (b)
 

NT Instruction Note 1 of 2021/22 Paragraph 4.1

Public Service Act Section 30 (1) 

Employment of Educators Act Section 33 (1) 
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1.	 Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after 
Virement):
Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies, disclosure notes and Annexure 1 
(A-H) to the Annual Financial Statements.

2.	 Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted 
(after Virement):
Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.

3.	 Detail on payments for financial assets
Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note on Payments for financial assets to the Annual 
Financial Statements.

4.	 Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after 
Virement):

4.1.	 Per programme

Final Budget
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance R’000

Variance as a % 
of Final Budget

R’000 R’000 R’000 %

Administration 74 150 73 049 1 101 1.5%

Underspending mainly due to the vacant post of the Secretary for Police Service

Intersectoral Coordination and Strategic Partnerships 25 470 25 458 12 0.0%

Small underspending on various economic classifications

Legislation and Policy Development 21 700 20 826 874 4.0%

Underspending mainly contributed to vacant post/s

Civilian Oversight, Monitoring and Evaluation 34 600 33 308 1 292 3.7%

Underspending mainly on vacant post/s and slower spending on goods and services than anticipated.

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2023
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4.2.	 Per economic classification

Final Budget Actual Expenditure Variance
Variance as a % of 

Final Budget

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Current payments 151 719 148 700 3 019 2.0%

Compensation of employees 110 656 107 659 2 997 2.7%

Goods and services 41 063 41 041 22 0.1%

Interest and rent on land - - - -

Transfers and subsidies 544 515 29 5.3%

Provinces and municipalities 19 14 5 26.3%

Departmental agencies and accounts 110 107 3 2.7%

Households 415 394 21 5.1%

Payments for capital assets 3 654 3 423 231 5.1%

Buildings and other fixed structures 1 088 1 082 6 0.6%

Machinery and equipment 2 565 2 341 224 8.7%

Software and Intangible assets 1 - 1 100.0%

Payments for financial assets 3 3 - 0.0%

Total 155 920 152 641 3 279 2.1%

Underspending can mainly be attributed to the vacancy of the Secretary for Police Service and management positions in Programme 3 and 4 
as well as a delay in the delivery of computer hardware and telephone equipment.

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2023
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Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

REVENUE

Annual appropriation 1 155 920 151 043

Departmental revenue 2 238 165

TOTAL REVENUE 156 158 151 208

EXPENDITURE

Current expenditure

Compensation of employees 3 107 659 102 497

Goods and services 4 41 041 34 398

Interest and rent on land - -

Total current expenditure 148 700 136 895

Transfers and subsidies

Transfers and subsidies 6 515 409

Total transfers and subsidies 515 409

Expenditure for capital assets

Tangible assets 7 3 423 923

Intangible assets 7 - 165

Total expenditure for capital assets 3 423 1 088

Payments for financial assets 5 3 15

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 152 641 138 407

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 3 517 12 801

Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Voted funds 3 279 12 636

Annual appropriation 3 279 12 636

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 12 238 165

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 3 517 12 801

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the year ended 31 March 2023
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Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

ASSETS 

Current assets 957 6 911

Cash and cash equivalents 8 - 6 556

Other financial assets

Prepayments and advances 9 565 328

Receivables 10 387 27

Loans

Non-current assets 38 170

Investments - -

Receivables 10 38 170

Loans - -

Other financial assets - -

TOTAL ASSETS 990 7 081

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 6 686 12 657

Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 11 3 279 12 636

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 12 2 -

Bank overdraft 13 3 324 -

Payables 14 81 21

Non-current liabilities 

Payables 15 - 120

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6 686 12 777

NET ASSETS (5 696) (5 696)

Capitalisation reserve - -

Recoverable revenue - -

Retained funds - -

Revaluation reserves - -

Unauthorised expenditure (5 696) (5 696)

TOTAL (5 696) (5 696)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
for the year ended 31 March 2023
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Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Capitalisation Reserves

Opening balance - - 

Transfers:

Movement in Equity / Operational Funds - - 

Closing balance - - 

Recoverable revenue

Opening balance - - 

Transfers - - 

Irrecoverable amounts written off - - 

Debts revised - - 

Debts recovered (included in departmental receipts) - - 

Debts raised - - 

Closing balance - - 

Retained funds

Opening balance - - 

Transferred from voted funds to be surrendered - - 

Utilised during the year - - 

Closing balance - - 

Revaluation Reserves

Opening balance - - 

Transfers - - 

Closing balance - - 

Unauthorised expenditure

Opening balance (5 696) (5 696)

Unauthorised expenditure - current year - - 

Relating to overspending of the vote or main division within the vote - - 

Incurred not in accordance with the purpose of the vote or main division - - 

Amounts approved by Parliament/Legislature with funding - - 

Amounts approved by Parliament/Legislature without funding and derecognized - - 

Current - - 

Capital - - 

Transfers and subsidies - - 

Amounts recoverable - - 

Amounts written off - - 

Closing balance (5 696) (5 696)

TOTAL (5 696) (5 696)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 March 2023
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Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts 155 996 151 123

Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 155 920 151 043

Statutory appropriated funds received - -

Departmental revenue received 2 76 80

Interest received - -

NRF Receipts - -

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital 537 99

Surrendered to Revenue Fund (12 872) (5 789)

Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor - -

Current payments (148 700) (136 895)

Interest paid - -

Payments for financial assets (3) (15)

Transfers and subsidies paid (515) (409)

Net cash flow available from operating activities 16 (6 636) 8 114

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Distribution/dividend received - -

Payments for capital assets 7 (3 423) (1 088)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2.2 162 85

(Increase)/decrease in loans - -

(Increase)/decrease in investments - -

(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets - -

(Increase)/decrease in non-current receivables 10 132 249

Net cash flows from investing activities 3 129 (754)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase/(decrease) in net assets - -

Increase/(decrease) in non-current payables (120) -

Net cash flows from financing activities (120) -

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (9 880) 7 360

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 6 556 (804)

Unrealised gains and losses within cash and cash equivalents - -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 17 (3 324) 6 556

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2023
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

PART A: ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied consistently 
in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that the financial statements present fairly 
the department’s primary and secondary information.  

The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated.  Management has used assessments and 
estimates in preparing the annual financial statements.  These are based on the best information available at the time of 
preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the financial 
statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 (as 
amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue 
Act.

1.
Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard.  

2.
Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis.

3.
Presentation currency 
Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional currency of the 
department.

4.
Rounding 
Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

5.
Foreign currency translation
Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands using the spot exchange rates 
prevailing at the date of payment/receipt.

6. Comparative information

6.1

Prior period comparative information
Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial statements.  Where necessary figures 
included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the format in which the information is 
presented is consistent with the format of the current year’s financial statements. 

6.2
Current year comparison with budget
A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme and economic classification is included 
in the appropriation statement.

7. Revenue

7.1

Appropriated funds
Appropriated funds comprise of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the revenue fund (i.e. statutory 
appropriation).
Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the appropriation becomes effective.  
Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the 
date the adjustments become effective.
Appropriated funds are measured at the amounts receivable.
The net amount of any appropriated funds due to/from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable / 
receivable in the statement of financial position.  
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

7.2

Departmental revenue
Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and is subsequently paid into the 
relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.
Departmental revenue is measured at the cash amount received.
In-kind donations received are recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the date of receipt and are measured at fair 
value.
Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in the statement of financial 
position.

7.3

Accrued departmental revenue
Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when:
•	 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the department; and the 

amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.
Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from collecting agents.
Write-offs are made according to the department’s debt write-off policy.

8. Expenditure

8.1 Compensation of employees

8.1.1
Salaries and wages
Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.  

8.1.2

Social contributions
Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in the statement of financial 
performance on the date of payment.  
Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as transfers to households in the statement 
of financial performance on the date of payment.

8.2

Other expenditure
Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital assets) is recognised in the 
statement of financial performance on the date of payment. The expense is classified as a capital expense if the total consideration 
paid is more than the capitalisation threshold. 
Donations made in kind are recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the date of transfer and are measured at cost or 
fair value.

8.3
Accruals and payables not recognised
Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost at the reporting date.

8.4 Leases

8.4.1

Operating leases
Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in the statement of financial 
performance on the date of payment.  Operating lease payments received are recognised as departmental revenue.
The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

8.4.2

Finance leases
Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in the statement of financial 
performance on the date of payment.  Finance lease payments received are recognised as departmental revenue.
The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are not apportioned between the capital 
and interest portions.  
Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the lower of:
•	 cost, being the fair value of the asset; or
•	 the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to acquire ownership at the end of the lease 

term, excluding interest.
Finance lease payments received are recognised as departmental revenue.

9.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.  
Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position as a current liability.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held, other short-term 
highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

10.

Prepayments and advances
Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the department receives or disburses the 
cash.  
Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.
Prepayments and advances are expensed when the invoice is received or the service was delivered
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

11.
Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued interest, where interest is charged, 
less amounts already settled or written-off.  Write-offs are made according to the department’s write-off policy.

12. Financial assets

12.1

Financial assets (not covered elsewhere) 
A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the 
financial asset.
At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts already settled or written-off, except 
for recognised loans and receivables, which are measured at cost plus accrued interest, where interest is charged, less amounts 
already settled or written-off.

12.2

Impairment of financial assets
Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction in the recorded carrying value, to 
reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic benefits expected to be received from that asset, is recorded in the 
notes to the financial statements.

13.
Payables
Payables recognised in the statement of financial position are recognised at cost.

14 Capital Assets

14.1

Immovable capital assets
Immovable assets reflected in the asset register of the department are recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost or 
fair value where the cost cannot be determined reliably. Immovable assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction are recorded at 
fair value at the date of acquisition.  Immovable assets are subsequently carried in the asset register at cost and are not currently 
subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use.
Additional information on immovable assets not reflected in the assets register is provided in the notes to financial statements.

14.2

Movable capital assets
Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  Movable capital assets acquired 
through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.  
Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital assets are measured at fair value and 
where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets are measured at R1.  
All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.
Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use.

14.3

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  Intangible assets acquired through a non-
exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.  
Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the department commences the 
development phase of the project.  
Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital assets are measured at fair value and 
where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are measured at R1.  
All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.
Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use. 

14.4

Project Costs: Work-in-progress
Expenditure of a capital nature is initially recognised in the statement of financial performance at cost when paid. 
Amounts paid towards capital projects are separated from the amounts recognised and accumulated in work-in-progress until 
the underlying asset is ready for use.  Once ready for use, the total accumulated payments are recorded in an asset register.  
Subsequent payments to complete the project are added to the capital asset in the asset register. 
Where the department is not the custodian of the completed project asset, the asset is transferred to the custodian subsequent to 
completion.

15 Provisions and Contingents

15.1

Provisions
Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to forfeit 
economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The provision is 
measured as the best estimate of the funds required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

15.2

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation that arises from past 
events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not within the control of the department or when there is a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

15.3

Contingent assets
Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset arises from past events, and whose 
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of 
the department.

15.4
Capital commitments 
Capital commitments are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial statements. 

16.

Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of changes in net assets until such time as the expenditure is either:
•	 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds are received; or
•	 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off against the appropriation in the statement 

of financial performance; or
•	 transferred to receivables for recovery.
Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure.

17.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are recorded in the statement of financial position, measured at the amount that is 
expected to be recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

18.
Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure receivables are recorded in the statement of financial position, measured at the amount that is expected to be 
recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

19.

Changes in accounting estimates and errors
Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS requirements.
Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with MCS requirements, 
except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error.  In such 
cases the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which 
retrospective restatement is practicable.

20.

Events after the reporting date
Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in the financial statements.  The 
events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting date have been disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements.  

21.

Departures from the MCS requirements
Management has concluded that the financial statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information; that 
the department complied with the Standard except that it has departed from a particular requirement to achieve fair presentation; 
and the requirement from which the department has departed, the nature of the departure and the reason for departure.

22.

Recoverable revenue
Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year becomes recoverable from a 
debtor in the current financial year.  Amounts are either transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered or are 
transferred to the statement of financial performance when written-off.

23.

Related party transactions
Related party transactions within the Minister/MEC’s portfolio are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the 
transaction is not at arm’s length. 
The number of individuals and the full compensation of key management personnel is recorded in the notes to the financial 
statements.

24.

Employee benefits
The value of each major class of employee benefit obligation (accruals, payables not recognised and provisions) is disclosed in the 
Employee benefits note. The provision for employee benefits is measured as the best estimate of the funds required to settle the 
present obligation at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1.	 Annual appropriation

Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act (and the Adjustments Appropriation Act) for National 
Departments (Voted funds) and Provincial Departments:

2022/23 2021/22

Final 
Appropriation

Actual Funds 
Received

Funds not 
requested/ not 

received

Final 
Appropriation

Appropriation 
Received

Funds not 
requested/not 

received

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Programmes

1 Administration 74 150 74 150 - 67 755 67 755 -

2 Inter-Sectoral Coordination 
and Strategic Partnership 25 470 25 470 - 26 196 26 196 -

3 Legislation and Policy 	
Development 21 700 21 700 - 23 220 23 220 -

4 Civilian Oversight, 
Monitoring and Evaluation 34 600 34 600 - 33 872 33 872 -

TOTAL 155 920 155 920 - 151 043 151 043 -

All appropriated funds requested and received as per approved drawings

2.	 Departmental revenue

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1 75 76

Sales of capital assets 2.2 162 85

Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 2.3 1 4

Total revenue collected 238 165

Less: Own revenue included in appropriation - -

Departmental revenue collected 238 165

All departmental revenue was collected and paid into the National Revenue Fund
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

2.1.	 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

Note 2022/23 2021/22

2 R’000 R’000

Sales of goods and services produced by the department 75 76

Sales by market establishment 39 40

Administrative fees - -

Other sales 36 36

Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods

TOTAL 75 76

The amount of R36 000 for other sales represents commission on insurance and garnishee orders.

2.2.	 Sale of capital assets

Note 2022/23 2021/22

3 R’000 R’000

Tangible capital assets 162 85

Buildings and other fixed structures 41 - -

Machinery and equipment 39 162 85

Intangible capital assets - -

Software 40 - -

Total 162 85

The Department sold three state vehicles on public auction.

2.3.	 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

Note 2022/23 2021/22

2 R’000 R’000

Loans and advances - -

Receivables 1 4

Total 1 4

This amount is departmental revenue emanating from previous year transactions.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

3.	 Compensation of employees

3.1.	 Analysis of balance

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Basic salary 72 248 69 916

Performance award 133 378

Service Based 22 44

Compensative/circumstantial 2 859 584

Periodic payments - 120

Other non-pensionable allowances 19 761 18 858

Total 95 023 89 900

The amount of R133 000 for Performance awards includes a payment of R18 000 as recognition for improvement of qualifications by lower 
level staff member/s

3.2.	 Social contribution

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Employer contributions

Pension 8 968 8 940

Medical 3 650 3 641

UIF - -

Bargaining council 18 16

Total 12 636 12 597

Total compensation of employees 107 659 102 497

Average number of employees (Including contract appointments) 166 149

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service  Annual Report 2022|2023 127



NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4.	 Goods and services

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Administrative fees 169 141

Advertising 304 1 317

Minor assets 4.1 946 118

Bursaries (employees) 686 203

Catering 646 1 292

Communication 1 778 1 738

Computer services 4.2 8 675 10 826

Consultants: Business and advisory services 942 722

Legal services 243 1 089

Contractors 440 47

Audit cost – external 4.3 1 973 1 838

Fleet services 922 661

Consumables 4.4 1 323 1 342

Operating leases 7 910 3 525

Property payments 4.5 714 62

Rental and hiring 9 -

Travel and subsistence 4.6 11 070 7 621

Venues and facilities 1 005 570

Training and development 234 474

Other operating expenditure 4.7 1 052 812

Total 41 041 34 398

4.1.	 Minor assets

Note 2022/23 2021/22

4 R’000 R’000

Tangible capital assets 946 118

Buildings and other fixed structures - -

Machinery and equipment 946 118

Intangible capital assets - -

Software - -

Total 946 118
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4.2.	 Computer Services

Note 2022/23 2021/22

4 R’000 R’000

SITA computer services 7 624 9 923

External computer service providers 1 051 903

Total 8 675 10 826

4.3.	 Audit cost – External

Note 2022/23 2021/22

4 R’000 R’000

Regularity audits 1 973 1 838

Total 1 973 1 838

4.4.	 Consumables

Note 2022/23 2021/22

4 R’000 R’000

Consumable supplies 667 326

Household supplies 628 274

Other consumables 39 52

Stationery, printing and office supplies 656 1 016

Total 1 323 1 342

4.5.	 Property payments

Note 2022/23 2021/22

4 R’000 R’000

Municipal services 714 -

Other - 62

Total 714 62
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4.6.	 Travel and subsistence

Note 2022/23 2021/22

4 R’000 R’000

Local 11 068 7 611

Foreign 2 10

Total 11 070 7 621

4.7.	 Other operating expenditure

Note 2022/23 2021/22

4 R’000 R’000

Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees 741 441

Resettlement costs 103 167

Other 208 204

Total 1 052 812

The amount “Other” represents printing and publications as well as courier services.

5.	 	Payments for financial assets

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Material losses through criminal conduct - -

Theft 5 - -

Other material losses - -

Debts written off 5.1 3 15

Total 3 15

5.1.	 Debts written off

Note 2022/23 2021/22

5 R’000 R’000

Nature of debts written off

Recoverable revenue written off - -

Damages to Hired Vehicles Expenditure with no liability by official/s 3 15

Total 3 15
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

6.	 Transfers and subsidies

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Provinces and municipalities Annexure 1A 14 14

Departmental agencies and accounts Annexure 1B 107 108

Households Annexure 1C 394 287

Total 515 409

7.	 Expenditure for capital assets

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Tangible capital assets 3 423 923

Buildings and other fixed structures 40 1 082 -

Machinery and equipment 39 2 341 923

Intangible capital assets - 165

Software 40 - 165

Total 3 423 1 088

7.1.	 Analysis of funds to acquire capital assets – 2022/23

Voted funds Aid assistance Total

R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 3 423 - 3 423

Buildings and other fixed structures 1 082 1 082

Machinery and equipment 2 341 - 2 341

Intangible assets

Software - -

Total 3 423 3 423
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

7.2.	 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – Prior year

Voted funds Aid assistance Total

R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 923 - 923

Buildings and other fixed structures - - -

Machinery and equipment 923 - 923

Intangible assets 165 - 165

Software 165 - 165

Total 1 088 - 1 088

7.3.	 Finance lease expenditure included in expenditure for capital assets

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Tangible capital assets

Buildings and other fixed structures - -

Machinery and equipment 23 78

Total 23 78

8.	 Cash and cash equivalents

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General Account - 8 567

Disbursements - (2 011)

Total - 6 556

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service  Annual Report 2022|2023132



NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

9.	 Prepayments and advances

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Prepayments and advances

Staff advances - - 

Travel and subsistence 1 6 

Prepayments (Not expensed) 9.2 16 14 

Advances paid (Not expensed) 9.1 548 308 

SOCPEN advances - - 

Total 565 328

Analysis of Total Prepayments and advances

Current Prepayments and advances 565 328

Non-current Prepayments and advances - -

Total 565 328 

9.1.	 Advances paid (Not expensed)

Note Balance as at 1 
April 2022

Less: Amount 
expensed in 
current year

Add or Less: 
Other

Add: Current 
Year advances

Balance as at 31 
March 2023

9 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

National departments 308 (308) - 548 548

Total 308 (308) - 548 548

Note Balance as at 1 
April 2021

Less: Amount 
expensed in 
current year

Add or Less: 
Other

Add: Current 
Year advances

Balance as at 31 
March 2022

9 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

National departments 284 (959) (310) 1 293 308

Total 284 (959) (310) 1293 308

The department makes advance payments to Government Communication and Information Services for media buying services and National 
School of Government for training courses
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

9.2.	 Prepayments (Not expensed)

Note Balance as at 1 
April 2022

Less: Amount 
expensed in 
current year

Add or Less: 
Other

Add: Current 
Year advances

Balance as at 31 
March 2023

9 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and Services 14 (14) - 16 16

Total 14 (14) - 16 16

Note Balance as at 1 
April 2021

Less: Amount 
expensed in 
current year

Add or Less: 
Other

Add: Current 
Year advances

Balance as at 31 
March 2022

9 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 252 (238) - - 14

Total 252 (238) - - 14

The department makes advance payment to DSTV and expense it on a monthly basis

10.	 Receivables

2022/23 2021/22

Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Note
Claims recoverable 10.1 342 - 342 - 138 138

Recoverable expenditure 10.2 50 5 50 5 8 13

Staff debt 10.3 - 33 33 22 24 46

Total 392 38 425 27 170 197

10.1.	 Claims recoverable

Note 2022/23 2021/22

10 and Annex 4 R’000 R’000

National departments 138

Public Entities 342

Total 342 138

This is amount claimed from Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority for payment of Work Integrated Learners’ stipend.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

10.2.	 Recoverable expenditure

Note 2022/23 2021/22

10 R’000 R’000

Disallowance: Damages & Losses: Current Assets 22 9

Salary: Deduction Disallowance 28 4

Total 50 13

Damages to rental vehicles still under investigation to determine liability and various deductions from staff salaries

10.3.	 Staff debt

Note 2022/23 2021/22

15 R’000 R’000

Debt Account: Non-Current Asset 33 46

Total 33 46

This is related to debt owned by staff members

11.	 Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 12 636 5 624

Prior period error 

As restated 12 636 5 624

Transfer from statement of financial performance (as restated) 3 279 12 636

Add:  Unauthorised expenditure for current year - -

Voted funds not requested/not received 1.1 - -

Transferred to retained revenue to defray excess expenditure - -

Paid during the year (12 636) (5 624)

Closing balance 3 279 12 636

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service  Annual Report 2022|2023 135



NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

12.	 Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the 
Revenue Fund

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Opening balance - -

Prior period error - -

As restated - -

Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance (as restated) 238 165

Paid during the year (236) (165)

Closing balance 2 -

13.	 Bank overdraft

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General Account 3 324 -

Total 3 324 -

The overdraft can be attributed to payments in transit between bank accounts, advances and pre-payments as well as payments for stipends 
made on behalf of SASSETA

14.	 Payables – current

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Clearing accounts 14.1 81 21

Total 81 21

14.1.	 Clearing accounts

Note 2022/23 2021/22

14 R’000 R’000

Salary deduction: Tax 76 20

Salary deductions: Pension 5 1

Total 81 21
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

15.	 Payables – non-current

2022/23 2021/22

One to two years Two to three years More than three years Total Total

Note R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Advances received 15.1 - - - - 120

Total - - - - 120

15.1.	 Advances received

Note 2022/23 2021/22

22 R’000 R’000

Public entities - 120

Other institutions - -

Total - 120

Amount received from PSETA for training and utilised accordingly during 2022/23.

16.	 Net cash flow available from operating activities

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial Performance 3 517 12 801

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities 10 148 (4 687)

(Increase)/decrease in receivables 360 273

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances (237) 208

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets - -

Increase/(decrease) in payables – current 60 (382)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets (162) (85)

Expenditure on capital assets 3 423 1 088

Surrenders to Revenue Fund (12 872) (5 789)

Net cash flow generated by operating activities 6 631 8 114

17.	 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General account (3 324) 8 567

Disbursements - (2 011)

Total (3 324) 6 556
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.	 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

18.1.	 Contingent liabilities

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Liable to Nature

Claims against the department Annex 3 - 66

Intergovernmental payables (unconfirmed balances) Annex 4 800 300

Total 800 366

The claim of R66 000 against the department was resolved and paid in 2022/23. The department is involved in pending litigation and will only 
be in a position to pay an amount (if any) when these cases are finalised. Due to the sensitivity of the matter/s more detail of the litigation 
cannot be disclosed. The amount also includes a claim received from SAPS which is not confirmed as CSPS expenditure as it is still being 
reviewed.

19.	 Capital commitments

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Buildings and other fixed structures - -

Machinery and equipment 3 348 6 825

Total 3 348 6 825

The amount includes an estimation of possible capital Information Technology equipment of which the detail is not currently available as it 
will depend on the value as invoiced and exchange rate fluctuations.

20.	 Accruals and payables not recognised

20.1.	 Accruals

2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Listed by economic classification 30 Days 30+ Days Total Total

Goods and services 1 123 - 1 123 996

Interest and rent on land - - - -

Transfers and subsidies - - - -

Capital assets - - - -

Other - - - -

Total 1 123 1 123 996
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for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Listed by programme level

Programme 1 878 411

Programme 2 58 260

Programme 3 41 30

Programme 4 146 295

Total 1 123 996

The accruals increased with R100 000 and is mainly due to services delivered in March 2023 but invoices received in April 2023.

20.2.	 Payables not recognised

2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Listed by economic classification 30 Days 30+ Days Total Total

Goods and services 1 217 - 1 217 137

Interest and rent on land - - - -

Transfers and subsidies - - - -

Capital assets - - - -

Other - - - -

Total 1 217 - 1 217 137

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Listed by programme level

Programme 1 663 38

Programme 2 102 2

Programme 3 199 6

Programme 4 253 91

Total 1 217 137

The invoices could not be processed due to late receipt thereof.
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for the year ended 31 March 2023

21.	 Employee benefits

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Leave entitlement 4 684 2 713

Service bonus 2 865 2 858

Performance awards - -

Capped leave 445 437

Other (incl Long Service Awards) 87 72

Total 8 081 6 080

At this stage the department is not able to reliably measure the long term portion of the long service awards.

22.	 Lease commitments

22.1.	 Operating leases

2022/23 Buildings and other fixed structures Total

R’000 R’000

Not later than 1 year 6 536 6 536

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 22 058 22 058

Later than five years - -

Total lease commitments 28 594 28 594

2021/22 Buildings and other fixed structures Total

R’000 R’000

Not later than 1 year 6 168 6 168

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 28 594 28 594

Later than five years - -

Total lease commitments 34 762 34 762

The commitment is for departmental office accommodation obtained through DPW&I for a 5 year contract.

22.2.	 Finance leases **

2022/23 Machinery and equipment Total

R’000 R’000

Not later than 1 year 521 521

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1 000 1 000

Later than five years

Total lease commitments 1 521 1 521
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2021/22 Machinery and equipment Total

R’000 R’000

Not later than 1 year 9 9

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -

Later than five years - -

Total lease commitments 9 9

The commitment is for a 3 year contract for photocopiers.

23.	 Unauthorised, irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Note 2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Unauthorised expenditure - -

Irregular expenditure 5 1 124

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - -

Total 5 1 124

Further detail and information on any criminal or disciplinary steps taken as a result of unauthorised expenditure, irregular expenditure and 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure is included in the annual report under the PFMA Compliance Report.

24.	 Related party transactions

The nature of the relationship between CSPS and its related parties is that all the institutions report to the Minister of Police:
South African Police Service
Independent Police Investigative Directorate
Private Security Industry Regulatory Authority

25.	 Key management personnel

2022/23 2021/22

R’000 R’000

Officials:

Level 15 to 16 2 066 2 025

Level 14 (incl CFO if at a lower level) 7 168 7 766

Family members of key management personnel - -

Total 9 234 9 791

The department is using the same criteria for key management personnel as in previous financial years.
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for the year ended 31 March 2023

26.	 Movable Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Opening balance Additions Disposals Closing Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 15 009 1 602 1 662 14 949

Transport assets 3 896 - 504 3 392

Computer equipment 7 946 714 844 7 816

Furniture and office equipment 3 167 888 314 3 741

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 15 009 1 602 1 662 14 949

Movable Tangible Capital Assents under investigation

Note Number Value

R’000

Included in the above total of the movable tangible capital assets per the asset register that 
are under investigation:

Machinery and equipment 5 105

Total 5 105

Assets reported as stolen or lost – investigation outcome still pending.

26.1.	 Movement for 2021/22

MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Opening 
balance

Prior period 
error

Additions Disposals
Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 14 598 - 845 434 15 009

Transport assets 4 080 - 250 434 3 898

Computer equipment 7 546 - 400 - 7 946

Furniture and office equipment 2 972 - 195 - 3 167

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 14 598 - 845 434 15 009
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26.2.	 Minor assets

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

Machinery and equipment Total

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 3 139 3 139

Value adjustments - -

Additions 946 946

Disposals 453 453

TOTAL MINOR ASSETS 3 632 3 632

Machinery and equipment Total

Number of R1 minor assets - -

Number of minor assets at cost 2 616 2 616

TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS 2 616 2 616

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

Machinery and equipment Total

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 3 021 3 021

Value adjustments - -

Additions 118 118

Disposals - -

TOTAL MINOR ASSETS 3 139 3 139

Machinery and equipment Total

Number of R1 minor assets - -

Number of minor assets at cost 2 308 2 308

TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS 2 308 2 308

26.3.	 Movable tangible capital assets written off

MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

Machinery and equipment Total

R’000 R’000

Assets written off 107 107

TOTAL MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF 107 107
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MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

Machinery and equipment Total

R’000 R’000

Assets written off - -

TOTAL MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF - -

27.	 Intangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Opening balance Additions Disposals Closing Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Software 943 - - 943

TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 943 - - 943

27.1.	 Movement for 2021/22

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Opening balance Additions Disposals Closing Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Software 778 165 - 943

TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 778 165 - 943

28.	 Immovable Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Opening 
balance

Value 
adjustments

Additions Disposals
Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES 22 - 1 798 22 1 798

Dwellings - - - - -

Non-residential buildings 22 - 1 081 22 1 081

Other fixed structures 717 717

TOTAL IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 22 - 1 798 22 1 798

The R22 000 represents a fixed air conditioner that was installed in the Van Erkom building and thus disposed of when the department 
vacated the on 31 March 2022.
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28.1.	 Movement for 2021/22

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Opening balance Additions Disposals Closing Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES

Non-residential buildings 22 22

TOTAL IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 22 22

29.	 Prior period errors

29.1.	 Correction of prior period errors

2021/22

Amount bef error 
correction

Prior period Restated

Note R’000 R’000 R’000
Expenditure:

Goods and Services Appropriation and Note 4 34 563 (165) 34 398

Payment for Capital assets: Appropriation and Note 7 923 165 1 088

Computer Services Appropriation and Note 4 10 991 (165) 10 826

Software and Other Intangible Assets Appropriation and Note 7 - 165 165

Net effect 46 477 46 477

The department discovered a payment made for purchase of software that was expensed as goods and services instead of capitalised 
software.

2021/22

Amount before error correction Prior period Restated

Note R’000 R’000 R’000

Other:

Lease Commitments: Operating Lease: Buildings 2021/22 Note 22 - 34 762 34 762

Net effect - 34 762 34 762

The department did not make provision for commitment of new building in the previous financial statements.
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30.	 Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Performance

Information on compliance with the B-BBEE Act is included in the annual report under the section titled B-BBEE Compliance 
Performance Information.

31.	 COVID-19 Response Expenditure

Note 2022/23 2021/22

Annexure 11 R’000 R’000

Compensation of employees -

Goods and services - 177

Transfers and subsidies - -

Expenditure for capital assets - -

Other - -

Total - 177

The department did not have any COVID-19 related expenditure.
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